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TAB 1



Court File No.
ONTARIO

SUPERIOR COURT OF JUSTICE
(COMMERCIAL LIST)

IN THE MATTER OF THE PROPOSAL OF
PV LABS INC.

NOTICE OF MOTION

PV Labs Inc. (“PV Labs” or the “Company”) will make a motion to a Judge of the

Commercial List on Thursday, February 2, 2017, at 10:00 a.m., or as soon after that time as the

motion can be heard, at 330 University Avenue, Toronto, Ontario.

PROPOSED METHOD OF HEARING: The motion is to be heard orally.

THE MOTION IS FOR:

1. an Order, substantially in the form attached hereto as Schedule “A”, among other things:

(a)

(b)

(©)
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if necessary, abridging the time for service of the Notice of Motion and the

Motion Record and validating service thereof;

extending the time for filing a proposal pursuant to s. 50.4(9) of the Bankruptcy

and Insolvency Act, R.S.C. 1983 c. B-3 (the “BIA”) to April 10, 2017;

approving the sale and investment solicitation process (“SISP”) described in the

report (the “BDO Report”) to be filed by BDO Canada Limited (“BDO”), in its



2
capacity as trustee in the proposal of PV Labs (in such capacity, the “Proposal

Trustee”);

(d) approving the interim financing of PV Labs by 902878 Ontario Limited (in such
capacity, the “DIP Lender”) substantially in accordance with the terms of the

Term Sheet dated January 20, 2017 (the “DIP Term Sheet”);

(e) granting the following priority charges over the assets of PV Labs, which charges

shall rank in the priority set out in the proposed order:

Q) a priority charge in favour of the Proposal Trustee, counsel to the Proposal

Trustee and counsel for PV Labs (the “Administration Charge”);

(i) a priority charge in favour of the DIP Lender to secure all amounts owing

under the DIP Term Sheet (the “DIP Lender’s Charge”); and

(iti)  a priority charge in favour of the directors and officers of PV Labs (the

“Directors’ Charge”); and

2. such further and other relief as this Honourable Court may deem just.

THE GROUNDS FOR THE MOTION ARE:

Background

1. PV Labs designs and develops turnkey aerial imaging systems for the (a) Cinema, (b)

Intelligence, Surveillance, Reconnaissance, and (c) Aerial Survey markets. The
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Company’s expertise is in the development of solutions that require high performance
gimbal stabilization, optics and data management that leverage its common software and

hardware components.

2. PV Labs is in default with certain of its secured lenders.

3. By letter dated January 18, 2017 (received January 19, 2017), PV Labs Capital
Corporation (an arm’s length lender) demanded repayment of its loan in full, claiming
$4,111,396.45 plus interest, fees and costs, and included a Notice of Intention to Enforce

Security under s. 244 of the BIA.

4. Management of the Company, with the assistances of its advisors, has considered the
most effective and efficient way to implement a sale transaction or other restructuring
alternative. Management considered its financial difficulties and its cash position and has
consulted extensively with its lenders. Ultimately, it was determined that the best
alternative in order to preserve the business as a going concern would be to pursue the
implementation of a sale transaction or other restructuring alternative through a proposal

proceeding under the BIA.

5. On January 27, 2017, PV Labs filed a Notice of Intention to File a Proposal (the “NOI’)

pursuant to section 50.4 of the BIA. BDO was appointed as Proposal Trustee.

The SISP

6. The Proposal Trustee has developed the SISP, which would be conducted independently

by the Proposal Trustee.

Doc#3825409v3
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7. Court approval of the SISP at the outset of the process is being sought in order to provide
certainty as to the commercial reasonableness of the SISP, and avoid the possibility that
time and effort will be incurred on a process that might later, when presenting a resulting

transaction for court authorization, be determined to have been inadequate.

The DIP Loan

8. PV Labs is presently facing a severe liquidity crisis and, absent further funding, it is
concerned that it could run out of liquidity needed to fund its operations by the end of the

week of January 30, 2017.

0. The DIP Lender has agreed to provide interim financing (the “DIP Loan”) to PV Labs

pursuant to the terms of the DIP Term Sheet.

10.  Without the DIP Loan, PV Labs will be unable to finance its operations or its efforts to

restructure its business.

The Charges

11.  The DIP Loan is subject to court approval of the DIP Term Sheet and the granting of a

court-ordered charge over all of the assets of PV Labs.

12. PV Labs will require the participation of the Proposal Trustee, the Proposal Trustee’s
legal counsel and its own legal counsel to assist with these NOI proceedings. PV Labs is
seeking the Administration Charge to secure payment of their reasonable fees and
expenses.
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13.  The requested court-ordered charges are fair and reasonable in the circumstances and are

necessary in order to complete the Company’s objectives in this proceeding.

Extension of Time

14.  An extension of time under s. 50.4(9) is required in order to permit the SISP to be carried

out and is warranted at this time in order to avoid an unnecessary court attendance.

Other Grounds

15.  Sections 50.4(9), 50.6, 64.2 and 64.1 of the BIA and the inherent and equitable

jurisdiction of this Court.

16.  Such further and other grounds as counsel may advise and this Honourable Court permits.

THE FOLLOWING DOCUMENTARY EVIDENCE will be used at the hearing of the

motion:

1. Affidavit of Mark Chamberlain;
2. The BDO Report; and

3. Such further and other material as counsel may advise and this Honourable Court

permits.
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Dated: January 27, 2017
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Court File No.

ONTARIO
SUPERIOR COURT OF JUSTICE
(COMMERCIAL LIST)

THE HONOURABLE JUSTICE DAY, THE

N N N

DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2017

IN THE MATTER OF THE PROPOSAL
OF PV LABS INC.

ORDER

THIS MOTION, made by PV Labs Inc. (“PV Labs”) for various relief pursuant to the
Bankruptcy and Insolvency Act (Canada), R.S.C. 1985, c¢. B-3, as amended (“BIA”), was heard

this day at 330 University Avenue, Toronto, Ontario.

ON READING the Notice of Motion, the Affidavit of Mark Chamberlain sworn January
27, 2017 (the “Chamberlain Affidavit”), the Report of BDO Canada Limited in its capacity as
the Proposal Trustee (“Proposal Trustee”) dated January 27, 2017 (the “BDO Report”), and on
being advised that the secured creditors who are likely to be affected by the charges created
herein were given notice, and on hearing the submissions of counsel to PV Labs, counsel to the
Proposal Trustee, counsel to the DIP Lender (as hereinafter defined), and counsel to ®, no one

else appearing.
SERVICE

1. THIS COURT ORDERS that the time for service of the Notice of Motion and the Motion
Record of PV Labs is hereby abridged and validated so that this Motion is properly returnable

today and hereby dispenses with further service thereof.
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STAY EXTENSION

2. THIS COURT ORDERS that the time for PV Labs to file a proposal, and the stay of
proceedings herein, is hereby extended in accordance with subsection 50.4(9) of the BIA to and

including April 10, 2017,
APPROVAL OF SISP

3. THIS COURT ORDERS that the sale and investment solicitation process (the “SISP”)
described in the BDO Report is hereby approved.

4. THIS COURT ORDERS that the Proposal Trustee and PV Labs be and are hereby
authorized and empowered to take such steps as are necessary or desirable to carry out and
perform their obligations under the SISP, provided that any definitive agreement to be executed
by PV Labs in respect of the sale of all or part of the Property (as defined below) shall require
further approval of this Court.

ADMINISTRATION CHARGE

5. THIS COURT ORDERS that the Proposal Trustee, counsel to the Proposal Trustee and
counsel to PV Labs shall be paid their reasonable fees and disbursements (including any pre-
filing fees and disbursements), in each case at their standard rates and charges, by PV Labs as
part of the costs of these proceedings. PV Labs is hereby authorized and directed to pay the
accounts of the Proposal Trustee, counsel to the Proposal Trustee and counsel to PV Labs on at

least a monthly basis.

6. THIS COURT ORDERS that the Proposal Trustee, counsel to the Proposal Trustee and
counsel to PV Labs shall be entitled to the benefit of and are hereby granted a charge (the
“Administration Charge”) on all assets, rights, undertakings, and properties of PV Labs, of
every nature and kind whatsoever, and wherever situated including all proceeds thereof (the
“Property”), which Administration Charge shall not exceed an aggregate amount of $250,000,
as security for their professional fees and disbursements incurred at their standard rates and
charges, both before and after the making of this Order in respect of these proceedings. The
Administration Charge shall have the priority set out in paragraphs 16 and 18 hereof.
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DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ INDEMNIFICATION AND CHARGE

7. THIS COURT ORDERS that PV Labs shall indemnify its directors and officers against
obligations and liabilities that they may incur as directors or officers of PV Labs after the
commencement of the within proceedings, except to the extent that, with respect to any officer or
director, the obligation or liability was incurred as a result of the director’s or officer’s gross

negligence or wilful misconduct.

8. THIS COURT ORDERS that the directors and officers of PV Labs shall be entitled to the
benefit of and are hereby granted a charge (the “Directors’ Charge”) on the Property, which
charge shall not exceed an aggregate amount of $e, as security for the indemnity provided in
paragraph 7 of this Order. The Directors’ Charge shall have the priority set out in paragraphs 16
and 18 hereof.

9. THIS COURT ORDERS that, notwithstanding any language in any applicable insurance
policy to the contrary, (a) no insurer shall be entitled to be subrogated to or claim the benefit of
the Directors’ Charge, and (b) PV Labs’ directors and officers shall only be entitled to the benefit
of the Directors’ Charge to the extent that they do not have coverage under any directors’ and
officers’ insurance policy, or to the extent that such coverage is insufficient to pay amounts

indemnified in accordance with paragraph 7 of this Order.
DIP FINANCING

10. THIS COURT ORDERS that the execution by PV Labs of the DIP Term Sheet (as
hereinafter defined) is hereby approved, nunc pro tunc, and PV Labs is hereby authorized and
empowered to perform its obligations under the DIP Term Sheet and to obtain and borrow
amounts under DIP Term Sheet entered into among PV Labs, as borrower, and 902878 Ontario
Limited, as lender (the “DIP Lender”), provided that borrowings under such credit facility shall

not exceed the principal amount of $1.5 million unless permitted by further Order of this Court.

11. THIS COURT ORDERS that such credit facility shall be on the terms and subject to the
conditions set forth in the DIP term sheet between PV Labs and the DIP Lender dated as of
January 20, 2017, and appended to the BDO Report (the “DIP Term Sheet”), together with such
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modifications as may be agreed upon by PV Labs and the DIP Lender and consented to by the

Proposal Trustee.

12. THIS COURT ORDERS that PV Labs is hereby authorized and empowered to execute
and deliver such credit agreements, mortgages, charges, hypothecs and security documents,
guarantees or other definitive documents (such documents, together with the DIP Term Sheet,
collectively, the “Definitive Documents™), as are contemplated by the DIP Term Sheet or as
may be reasonably required by the DIP Lender pursuant to the terms thereof, together with such
modifications as may be agreed upon by PV Labs and the DIP Lender and consented to by the
Proposal Trustee, and PV Labs is hereby authorized and directed to pay and perform all of its
indebtedness, interest, fees, liabilities, and obligations to the DIP Lender under and pursuant to
the Definitive Documents as and when the same become due and are to be performed,

notwithstanding any other provision of this Order.

13. THIS COURT ORDERS that the DIP Lender shall be entitled to the benefit of and is
granted a charge (the “DIP Lender’s Charge”) on the Property, which DIP Lender’s Charge
shall not secure an obligation that exists before this Order is made. The DIP Lender’s Charge

shall have the priority set out in paragraphs 16 and 18 hereof.
14. THIS COURT ORDERS that, notwithstanding any other provisions of the BIA:

a. the DIP Lender may take such steps from time to time as it may deem necessary
or appropriate to file, register, record, or perfect the DIP Lender’s Charge or any

of the Definitive Documents;

b. upon the occurrence of an event of default under the Definitive Documents, the
DIP Lender may (i) cease making advances to PV Labs, and (ii) with approval of
the Court upon at least three (3) business days’ notice to PV Labs and the
Proposal Trustee, exercise any and all of its rights and remedies against PV Labs
or the Property under or pursuant to the Definitive Documents and the DIP
Lender’s Charge, including without limitation, set off and/or consolidate any
amounts owing by the DIP Lender to PV Labs against the obligations of PV Labs
to the DIP Lender under the Definitive Documents or the DIP Lender’s Charge, to
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make demand, accelerate payment and give other notices, or to apply to this Court
for the appointment of a receiver, receiver and manager or interim manager, or for
a bankruptcy order against PV Labs and for the appointment of a trustee in

bankruptcy of PV Labs; and

c. the foregoing rights and remedies of the DIP Lender shall be enforceable against
any trustee in bankruptcy, interim receiver, receiver or receiver and manager of

PV Labs or the Property.

15. THIS COURT ORDERS AND DECLARES that all claims of the DIP Lender pursuant to
the Definitive Documents are not claims that may be compromised pursuant to any Proposal
under the BIA (“Proposal”) filed by PV Labs or any plan of arrangement or compromise
(“Plan”) filed by PV Labs under the Companies’ Creditors Arrangement Act, R.S.C., 1985, c. C-
36, as amended (the “CCAA”) without consent of the DIP Lender and, the DIP Lender shall be
treated as unaffected in any Proposal or Plan or other restructuring with respect to any

obligations outstanding to the DIP Lender under or in respect of the Definitive Documents.
VALIDITY AND PRIORITY OF CHARGES CREATED BY THIS ORDER

16. THIS COURT ORDERS that the priorities of the Administration Charge, the DIP

Lender’s Charge and the Director’s Charge, as among them, shall be as follows:
First - Administration Charge (to the maximum amount of $250,000);
Second - DIP Lender’s Charge; and
Third — Directors’ Charge (to the maximum amount of $e)

17. THIS COURT ORDERS that the filing, registration or perfection of the Administration
Charge, or the DIP Lender’s Charge (collectively, the “Charges”) shall not be required, and that
the Directors’ Charge shall be valid and enforceable for all purposes, including as against any
right, title or interest filed, registered, recorded or perfected subsequent to the Charges coming

into existence, notwithstanding any such failure to file, register, record or perfect.
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18. THIS COURT ORDERS that each of the Charges shall constitute a charge on the
Property and such Charges shall rank in priority to all other security interests, trusts, liens,
charges and encumbrances, claims of secured creditors, statutory or otherwise (collectively,
“Encumbrances”), in favour of any Person, notwithstanding the order of perfection or

attachment.

19. THIS COURT ORDERS that except as otherwise expressly provided for herein, or as
may be approved by this Court, PV Labs shall not grant any Encumbrances over any Property
that rank in priority to, or pari passu with, any of the Charges, unless PV Labs also obtains the
prior written consent of the Proposal Trustee, the DIP Lender and all other beneficiaries of the

Charges, or further Order of this Court.

20. THIS COURT ORDERS that the Administration Charge, the Directors’ Charge, the
Definitive Documents and the DIP Lender’s Charge shall not be rendered invalid or
unenforceable and the rights and remedies of the chargees entitled to the benefit of the Charges
(collectively, the “Chargees”) thereunder shall not otherwise be limited or impaired in any way
by (a) the pendency of these proceedings and the declarations of insolvency made herein; (b) any
motion(s) or application(s) for bankruptcy order(s) issued pursuant to BIA, or any bankruptcy
order made pursuant to such motions or applications; (c) the filing of any assignments for the
general benefit of creditors made or deemed to have been made pursuant to the BIA; (d) the
provisions of any federal or provincial statutes; or (e) any negative covenants, prohibitions or
other similar provisions with respect to borrowings, incurring debt or the creation of
Encumbrances, contained in any existing loan documents, leases, sublease, offer to lease or other
agreement (collectively, an “Agreement”) which binds PV Labs or the DIP Lender, and

notwithstanding any provision to the contrary in any Agreement:

a. neither the creation of the Charges nor the execution, delivery, perfection,
registration or performance of the Definitive Documents shall create or be
deemed to constitute a breach by PV Labs or the DIP Lender of any Agreement to

which any one of them is a party;

Doc#3826838v1
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b. none of the Chargees shall have any liability to any Person whatsoever as a result
of any breach of any Agreement caused by or resulting from PV Labs entering
into the Definitive Documents, the creation of the Charges, or the execution,

delivery or performance of the Definitive Documents; and

c. the payments made by PV Labs pursuant to this Order, the Definitive Documents,
and the granting of the Charges, do not and will not constitute preferences,
fraudulent conveyances, transfers at undervalue, oppressive conduct, or other

challengeable or voidable transactions under any applicable law.
SERVICE AND NOTICE

21. THIS COURT ORDERS that the E-Service Protocol of the Commercial List (the
“Protocol”) is approved and adopted by reference herein and, in this proceeding, the service of
documents made in accordance with the Protocol (which may be found on the Commercial List
website at http://www.ontariocourts.ca/scj/practice/practice-directions/toronto/eservice-
commercial/) shall be valid and effective service. Subject to Rule 17.05 of the Rules of Civil
Procedure, this Order shall constitute an order for substituted service pursuant to Rule 16.04 of
the Rules of Civil Procedure. Subject to Rule 3.01(d) of the Rules of Civil Procedure and
paragraph 21 of the Protocol, service of documents in accordance with the Protocol will be
effective upon transmission. This Court further orders that a Case Website shall be established in

accordance with the Protocol with the following URL: e.

22. THIS COURT ORDERS that if the service or distribution of documents in accordance
with the Protocol is not practicable, the Proposal Trustee, counsel to the Proposal Trustee and
counsel to PV Labs are at liberty to serve or distribute this Order, any other materials and orders
in these proceedings, any notices or other correspondence, by forwarding true copies thereof by
prepaid ordinary mail, courier, personal delivery, facsimile or electronic transmission to PV
Labs’ creditors or other interested parties at their respective addresses as last shown on the
records of PV Labs and that any such service or notice by courier, personal delivery, facsimile or
electronic transmission shall be deemed to be received on the next business day following the

date of forwarding thereof, or if sent by ordinary mail, on the third business day after mailing.
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GENERAL

23.  THIS COURT ORDERS that PV Labs or the Proposal Trustee may from time to time
apply to this Court for advice and directions in the discharge of their powers and duties

hereunder.

24. THIS COURT ORDERS that each of PV Labs and the Proposal Trustee be at liberty and
is hereby authorized and empowered to apply to any court, tribunal, regulatory or administrative
body, wherever located, for the recognition of this Order, and for assistance in carrying out the

terms of this Order and any other Order issued in these proceedings.

25. THIS COURT ORDERS that any interested party (including PV Labs and the Proposal
Trustee) may apply to this Court to vary or amend this Order on not less than seven (7) days
notice to any other party or parties likely to be affected by the order sought or upon such other

notice, if any, as this Court may order.

26. THIS COURT ORDERS that this Order and all of its provisions are effective as of 12:01
a.m. Eastern Daylight Time on the date of this Order, and, for greater certainty, the DIP Lender
shall be entitled to rely on this Order as issued for all advances made under the DIP Term Sheet
and the Definitive Documents up to and including the date this Order may be varied or amended

by this Court.
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Court File No.
ONTARIO

SUPERIOR COURT OF JUSTICE
(COMMERCIAL LIST)

IN THE MATTER OF THE PROPOSAL OF
PV LABS INC.

AFFIDAVIT OF MARK CHAMBERLAIN

I, Mark Chamberlain, of the City of Hamilton, in the Province of Ontario, MAKE OATH AND

SAY AS FOLLOWS:

1. I am the President, CEO and largest shareholder of PV Labs Inc. (referred to herein as “PV
Labs” or the “Company”). As such, | have personal knowledge of the matters to which | depose in
this affidavit, save and except for such facts or matters which are stated to be based on information and

belief, and where so stated, | believe same to be true.

2. This affidavit is sworn in support of a motion brought by the Company seeking an order (among

other things):

€)) extending the time for filing a proposal pursuant to s. 50.4(9) of the Bankruptcy and

Insolvency Act, R.S.C. 1983 c. B-3 (“BIA”) to April 1, 2017;

(b) approving an interim financing facility in the form of the Term Sheet signed by 902878

Ontario Limited:;
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2
() approving court-ordered charges in favour of (i) the DIP Lender (defined below), (ii) the
professionals whose work will be essential to the process described below, and (iii) the

directors and officers of the Company; and

(d) approving a sale and investor solicitation process as recommended by BDO Canada

Limited (“BDO”) in its capacity as proposal trustee (the “Proposal Trustee™).

A BUSINESS OF PV LABS

i. Background
3. PV Labs is an Ontario corporation with its head office in Burlington.
4. | founded PV Labs in 2004. Since then, PV Labs has designed and developed turnkey aerial

imaging systems for the (a) Cinema, (b) Intelligence, Surveillance, Reconnaissance, and (c) Aerial
Survey markets. The Company’s expertise is in the development of solutions that require high
performance gimbal stabilization, optics and data management that leverage our common software and

hardware components.

5. After 4 years of investment, PV Labs has developed the next generation of stabilization
technology. This technology represents the fifth generation of stabilization technology and is the first
platform stabilization technology to utilize a six degree of freedom “Flex-Pivot-Isolator” to replace the
traditional mechanical constraint system in a gimbal. The new technology includes both software and

hardware that enable a structure to provide a simple, direct support for the imager.
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3
6. PV Labs is the newest entrant in the markets utilizing its ‘GEN V’ technology based products
where major competitors include L-3 Communications, Raytheon and FSI. The competitive advantage
of the new GEN V technology based products is its significant improvements in size, weight and

performance as compared to its competitors.

ii.  Employees

7. The Company currently has approximately 31 employees, all of whom are non-unionized. Of
these employees, there are approximately 9 working on the manufacturing side, 19 engineers and 2

working in sales.

8. The Company does not maintain or contribute to a pension plan for its employees.
iii.  Facilities
9. PV Labs operates out of leased premises in Burlington which total approximately 7,850 square

feet. The current lease term for these premises expires in February 2019.

iv.  Subsidiaries

10.  The Company has interests in the following companies:

@) 100% ownership in Pictorvision Holdings Inc., a Delaware company whose sole asset is
all of the shares of Pictorvision Inc. (“Pictorvision”), another Delaware company.
Pictorvision leases out imaging systems under an arrangement with a California-based

supplier of telescopic cranes; and
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(b) aminor interest (less than 5%) in GeoDigital International Inc. (“GDI’"), which mainly

provides aerial survey solutions for the power utility market.

B. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

i.  Financial Statements

11.  The Company’s financial statements are typically prepared on a consolidated basis with a
September 30 year-end. The most current unaudited consolidated financial statements for the Company

are for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2016, a true copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A.

12.  Attached hereto as Exhibit B is a true copy of interim financial statements for the period ending

December 31, 2016.

ii.  Assets

13.  Asof December 31, 2016, the Company’s principal assets consisted of the following:

Asset Book Value
Unrelated party accounts receivable $311,669
Inventory $1,121,964
Work in Progress 563,810
ITC Taxes Receivable $1,265,000
Fixed Assets $131,213
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iii.  Secured Creditors

a. RBC

14. PV Labs entered into a credit agreement with Royal Bank of Canada (“RBC”) pursuant to a
Facilities Letter dated March 8, 2012 as amended September 5, 2012 (the “RBC Credit Agreement”).
Under the RBC Credit Agreement, the Company has a revolving line of credit in the maximum amount

of $600,000 which currently bears interest at the rate of 5.6% per annum.

15. RBC holds a general security interest against all of PV Labs’ assets which has been registered

under the Personal Property Security Act (Ontario) (the “PPSA”).

16.  AsofJanuary 17,2017, the Company’s indebtedness to RBC under the RBC Credit Agreement

totaled $525,000.

b. BDC

17. Pursuant to a Letter of Offer dated February 24, 2011, Business Development Bank of Canada
(“BDC”) granted a loan to PV Labs in the amount of $2.5 million. The parties signed a Loan
Agreement dated April 25, 2011 (the “BDC Loan Agreement”). The terms of the loan have been

amended from time to time by way of letters signed by BDC and PV Labs.

18. The Company’s obligations under the BDC Loan Agreement are secured pursuant to, among
other things, a general security agreement in favour of BDC. BDC has registered its security interest in

accordance with the PPSA.
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6
19.  The Company is in default under its obligations owed to BDC, which is in a position to demand

repayment in full of all amounts owed under the BDC Loan Agreement.

20.  AsofJanuary 22, 2017, the Company’s indebtedness to BDC under the BDC Loan Agreement

will total approximately $2,130,960 for principal and $33,116 in accrued interest.

c. PVLCC

21. In January 2013, the Company accepted an offer of financing from Dundurn Capital Partners
Inc. (“Dundurn”) which called for, among other things, a $2 million convertible loan, $750,000 of
SRED financing and the sale of 5/6ths of its subsidiary, Pictorvision, to Dundurn for $2.5 million,

which funds would be used by PVL to repay the BDC debt.

22, Dundurn was an entity controlled by an existing shareholder (Rob Manherz) who was also a
director of PVL. Dundurn was to be replaced by a new vehicle - PV Labs Capital Corporation

(“PVLCC?”) - once the participants were finalized.

23.  ALoan Agreement dated January 30, 2013 was signed by PVL and PVLCC (and related parties)
which called for, among other things, repayment of the loan by PVLCC on the earliest of January 20,

2014 and the occurrence of an event of default.

24, PVLCC did not subsequently complete the transaction to acquire the Company’s interest in
Pictorvision, and accordingly the Company did not make the corresponding payment in reduction of the

BDC debt.
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25.  The term of the loan by PVLCC expired in 2014, at which time all amounts properly owed to
PVLCC became repayable, subject to the terms of the agreements between the parties. Since that time,
PVL and PVLCC have communicated periodically in an attempt to resolve their various issues,
including but not limited to repayment of the amounts owed to PVLCC, but to date various issues

between the parties remain unresolved, and the Company does not have the means to repay PVLCC.

26. PVLCC holds a general security interest against all of PV Labs’ assets which has been

registered under the PPSA.

27.  Asof December 31, 2016, the Company’s indebtedness to PVLCC (not including a management
fee claimed by PVLCC in the amount of approximately $976,000) totaled approximately $1,952,000 for

principal and accrued interest of $628,000 (based on a 10% interest rate).

28. By letter dated January 18, 2017 (received January 19, 2017), a true copy of which is attached
hereto as Exhibit C, PVLCC demanded repayment of its loan in full, claiming $4,111,396.45 plus

interest, fees and costs, and included a Notice of Intention to Enforce Security under s. 244 of the BIA.

d. Other Secured Creditors

29. I am informed by Michael Kril-Mascarin, an associate lawyer with Chaitons LLP (“Chaitons”),
counsel to PV Labs, that Chaitons has conducted searches under the Ontario Personal Property Security
Registration System. Those searches have revealed registrations in favour of the following parties (I
have omitted RBC, BDC, and PVLCC since their registrations are summarized above), all of which

relate to equipment leases:
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e Xerox Canada Ltd.
e National Leasing Group Inc.
e Dell Financial Services Canada Limited

30.  Attached hereto as Exhibit D is a summary prepared by Chaitons of the results of those searches

including a brief description of the collateral shown on the registrations.
e. Priorities

31. By Amended and Restated Subordination and Priorities Agreement signed in February 2013 (the
“Inter-Creditor Agreement”), a true copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit E, RBC, BDC and
PVLCC set forth their respective rights and remedies in respect of the security granted by PV Labs to

each of them.

32.  The Inter-Creditor Agreement establishes the following general priorities among these parties as

more specifically detailed therein:

@) the BDC Security and the RBC Security were postponed and subordinated to the
PVLCC Security with respect to SRED tax credits for the Company’s 2012 tax year

and the Company’s shares in GDI;

(b) other than with respect to SRED tax credits for the Company’s 2012 tax year and the
Company’s shares in GDI, the PVLCC Security was fully subordinated to the BDC

Security and the RBC Security; and
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() the BDC Security was fully subordinated to the RBC Security, except that:

I. the BDC Security ranks in priority to the RBC Security with respect to a life

insurance policy on my life; and

ii.  the RBC Security and BDC Security rank pari passu with respect to the Company’s

intellectual property.

f. Unsecured Creditors

33.  As of December 31, 2016, the Company’s principal unsecured liabilities, not including the

amounts owed to RBC, BDC and PVLCC, consisted of the following:

Liabilities Amount
Accounts Payable $1,861,270
Customer Advances $1,294,379

C. FINANCIAL POSITION OF PV LABS

i. Cash Flow

34.  The Company does not currently have any cash and is relying on its operating line with RBC to

finance operations.

1 Those funds were received by PV Labs and used to pay off the PVLCC SRED loan facility.
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35.  The Company has worked with the Proposal Trustee to prepare a current cash flow statement
(the “Cash Flow”) for the Company, which | understand is appended to the report of the Proposal

Trustee being filed with the Court.

36. Based on the assumptions in the Cash Flow and the current circumstances facing the Company,
the Company is concerned that it could run out of liquidity needed to fund its operations by the end of

the week of January 30, 2017.

ii.  Events Leading to the Company’s Current Financial Circumstances

37.  Overthe past 4 years, PV Labs has invested approximately $10 million in the development of a
new aerial camera stabilization technology for the Intelligence, Reconnaissance and Security markets

and the commercial Cinema market.

38. The initial commercial product available for sale based on the new technology was finished
approximately one year late due to technical design problems and supplier delays. Based on the original
completion date, and the strength from orders for the first five units, the company began purchasing the

necessary inventory to meet customer delivery dates at a cost of approximately $400,000 per system.

39. The delayed delivery of the first units has resulted in a significant delay in revenue at the same
time that inventory has increased significantly. Anongoing dispute regarding the terms of the PVLCC
loan has prevented the company from obtaining additional financing to fund the cash shortfall. The
combined impact has resulted in a significant cash shortage and our inability to meet our immediate

financial and operating obligations.
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NOI PROCEEDING

40. Management of the Company, with the assistances of its advisors, has considered the most
effective and efficient way to implement a sale transaction or other restructuring alternative.
Management considered its financial difficulties and its cash position and has consulted extensively
with its lenders. Ultimately, it was determined that the best alternative in order to preserve the business
as a going concern would be to pursue the implementation of a sale transaction or other restructuring

alternative through a proposal proceeding under the BIA.

D. RELIEF SOUGHT

i. Sale and Investor Solicitation Process

41. The Proposal Trustee has developed a proposed sale and investor solicitation process (the
“SISP”) which would be conducted independently by the Proposal Trustee. | understand that a
summary of the SISP, including proposed terms and timelines, will be included in a report to be filed

with the Court by the Proposal Trustee (the “Trustee’s Report”).

42.  Court approval of the SISP at the outset of the process is being sought in order to provide
certainty as to the commercial reasonableness of the SISP, and avoid the possibility that time and effort
will be incurred on a process that might later, when presenting a resulting transaction for court

authorization, be determined to have been inadequate.
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ii.  Interim Financing

43.  Asexplained above, the Company has insufficient liquidity to maintain its operations through

the proposal proceedings.

44, PV Labs received an offer for interim financing from 902878 Ontario Inc. (“902”) which it
evaluated with the assistance of its counsel and the Proposal Trustee, considering, among other things,
the costs and fees associated with the proposal, the priority ranking of charges securing the proposed
interim financing and the Company’s liquidity requirements during the proposal proceedings. 902’s
principal in John Heersink, and is known to the Company as it had previously provided financing to the
Company of up to $1 million secured by the Company’s rights to certain amounts payable to it under

the federal Scientific Research and Experimental Development Tax Incentive Program (“SRED”).

45.  After evaluating the financing proposal from 902 with a view to the best interests of
PV Labs and its stakeholders, PV Labs negotiated with 902’s principal, John Heersink, to finalize
the terms of the proposed financing. | understand that a copy of the finalized term sheet (the “DIP
Term Sheet”) setting out the terms of the interim financing facility (the “DIP Facility”) will be

attached to the Trustee’s Report.

46.  The DIP Facility is provided on terms that are fair and reasonable and is the product of an arms’

length negotiation and compromise.

47. It is contemplated that all obligations of the Company under the DIP Term Sheet are to be
secured by a court-ordered charge (the “DIP Lender’s Charge”) over all present and after-acquired
property, assets and undertakings of the Company, ranking in priority to all other obligations other than
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the Administration Charge (defined below), statutory super priority deemed trusts and liens for unpaid
source deductions and such other permitted priority encumbrances as may be agreed to in writing by

902.

48. For the reasons more fully detailed in the Proposal Trustee’s Report, | understand that the

Proposal Trustee supports approval of the DIP Term Sheet.

iii.  Administration Charge

49. It is contemplated that the Proposal Trustee, counsel to the Proposal Trustee and counsel to the
Company would be granted a first priority court-ordered charge on the assets, property and undertaking
of the Company in priority to all claims (the “Administration Charge”) in respect of their fees and

disbursements, incurred at standard rates and charges.

50. | believe that the Administration Charge is fair and reasonable in the circumstances and is

necessary in order to complete the Proposal Proceedings.

iv. D&O Charge

51.  The following expenses giving rise to director liability are expected to be incurred by the

Company going forward:

@) wages and vacation pay;

(b) source deductions payable to CRA; and

(c) HST remittances to CRA.
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52.  Ihave made inquiries with the Company’s insurance brokers in an effort to obtain director and
officer liability coverage in connection with the exposure faced by them during the proposal

proceedings, and have been unable to obtain a quotation,

53.  Since the Company is unable to obtain such insurance, the Company is seeking a charge in
favour of its director and officers ranking in priority to all security interests, trusts, liens, charges and
encumbrances, claims of secured creditors, statutory or otherwise, other than the Administration Charge

and the DIP Lender’s Charge.
E. CONCLUSION

54.  For the reasons set out above, I believe that it is in the interests of the Company and all of its

stakeholders that the relief sought by the Company be granted.

SWORN before me at the City
of Burlington, Province of
Ontario, thismm{la}f

of January, 2017

iﬂu‘(mf

Mark Chamberlain

F

B

A Commissioner, Eftec.

Alexandra Mary Ann Krancevic, a Commissioner, ete.,
Provinca of Ontarfo, whils a Studant-at-Law.
Expires August 12, 2019,
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Dialaltte LLP

1005 Skyview Drive
Sulle 200

Businglon ON L7P 581
Canada

Tel: B05-318-6770
Fanc 9053156700
v, deloitte. ca

Review Engagement Report

To the Directors of
PV Labs Inc.

We have reviewed the consolidated balance sheet of PV Labs Inc. as at September 30, 2016 and the
consolidated statements of operations and deficit and cash flows for the year then ended. Our review was
made in accordance with Canadian generally accepted sta or review engagements and,
accordingly, consisted primarily of inquiry, analytical pro and discussion related to information

supplied to us by the Company.

A review does not constitute an audit u:@a not express an audit opinion on these
consolidated financial statements.

Mate 2 to the consolidated financial indicates that a management fee associated with the
convertible loan described in Note 9 to olidated financial statements has not been recorded as a
liability as at September 30, 2016. The effects of this departure from Canadian accounting standards for

private enterprises on the unaudited financial statements would be an increase to accounts payable and
accrued liabilities and to deficit by $976,494,

Except for the departure, as described in the preceding paragraph, to record the management fee
associated with the convertible loan, based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes
us to believe that these consolidated financial statements are not, in all material respects, in accordance
with Canadian accounting standards for private enterprises,

Emphasis of Matter

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 1 in the financial statements which indicates
that the Company has incurred losses and has a substantial accumulated deficit as at September 30, 2016
as a result of continued research and development expenditures. These conditions, along with other
matters as set forth in Note 1, indicate the existence of a material uncertainty that may cast significant
doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concem.

Chartered Professional Accountants
Licensed Public Accountants
DATE
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PV Labs Inc.
Consolidated balance sheet
as at September 30, 2016
(Unaudited)
2016 2015
] L7
Assets
Current agsels
Cash 286,389 245826
Accounis recelvable 503,655 1,821,061
Inveniores (Note 4) 1,690,801 1,217,050
Prepaid expenses and deposils 111,780 22201
Invesimeant tax credits receivable (Note 15) 1,258,296 1,348,274
Incoma taxes recoverable (Nola 17) 108,324 110,612
Future income taxes (Note 15) 18,364 18,752
3,977,619 4,983,586
Property, plant and equipment {(Note 5) 651,408 790,282
Investments (Note 3) 564,452 564,452
Long Term Future Income Taxes 141,663 144 655
5335142 6,482,975
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Bank indebledness (Note B) 509,000 271,000
Accounits payable and acerued liabilj 2,943,786 1,948,047
Government remittances 10,924 10,924
Deferred revenue 1,084,027 930,489
Short Term Debt (Mota 7) 700,000 611,400
Warranty reserve 196,323 145,320
Promissory note payable (Mote 11) - 250,000
Convertible Debt ( Note 8) 1,852,988 1,952 988
Current portion of Long-term debt (Note 8) 468,820 410,020
Current portion of capital lease obligations (Note 10) 28,310 37,263
7,895,178 8,567 451
Future income taxes (Note 15) 564,031 575942
Leng-term debt (Note B) 1,637,028 2,058 497
Long-term portion of capital lease obligations (Note 10} 11,437 10,889
10,107,674 9,210, B79
Lease commilments (Note 11)
Shareholders' equity
Share capital (Note 12} 4,790,537 4,790,037
Confributed surplus 451,904 451,804
{Deficit) retained earnings (10,014,973) (7,968 ,845)

(4,772,532) (2,727,904)

5,335,142 6,482,875
(@

Approved by the Board (0
Ol

The accompanying notes to the cominliddated financial statements are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

Director
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PV Labs Inc.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

September 30, 2016
(Unaudited)

2‘

Description of business and basis of presentation

PV Labs Inc. (the "Company™) exists to capture and create the imagery and metadata to satisfy the next
generation of geospatial applications. We are an advanced imaging solutions company specializing in
the design and development of turnkey aerial Imaging systems based on our core technology
platforms. Our experiise is in the development of sclutions that require high performance gimbal
stabilization, oplics and data management thal leverage our common software and hardware
components for customers in the Security & Surveillance, Public Safety, Airborme Geospatial and
Entertainmenl markets.

While the consolidated financial stalements have been prepared on the basis of accounting principles
applicable to a going concem, which contemplates the realization of assets and liquidation of liabilities
during the normal course of operations, certain adverse conditions and events cast substantial doubt on
the validity of this assumption. The Company has incurred net losses over the past three years during
which time new product development has been undenway. According to management's current plan, the
Company may need to raise additional capital through financing arrangements as the sales forecasts
for fulure years are at levels which have not previously been achieved. With the exception of those
described In Note 8 and 7, no agreements with lenders have been reached and there is no assurance
that such agreaments will be reached, nor that financi orts will be successful.

At September 30, 2016, the Company violated certaln
debt for which a waiver has been received from thgale!
the Company will meet such covenants in th
convertible loan on January 18,
claiming payment of a manageg®
the loan. The terms of this loalgg

The liability associated with this
statements.

The Company's continued existenct is dependent on its ability to raise additional financing and to
achieve and malntain profitable operations. The consolidated financial statements do not include
adjustments or disclosures that may result from the Company's inability to continue as a going concem.
If the going concem assumption were not appropriate for these consolidated financlal statements, then
adjustments to the camying values of assets and liabilities and the reported expensas and balance sheet
classifications would be necessary and such adjustmenis may be material.

covenants associated with their bank
ascribed in Mote 6. There is no ceralnty
s CWecric® in Note 8, the Company issued a
theMoan is January 20, 2014 and the lender is
$976,494 in addition to the principal balance of
spute as the shareholders did not approve these terms.
e has not been reflected in these consolidated financlal

Accounting policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian accounting
standards for private enterprises, except that management of the Company has not recorded an
accrued management fee claimed by PVL Capital Corporation In the amount of $976,494 as at
September 30, 2016 (2015 - $876,494). The consolidated financial statements reflect the following
significant accounting policies:

Principles of consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and those of
its wholly-owned subsidiaries, Pictorvision Holdings Inc. and Pictorvision Inc. On August 31, 2016, the
operating entities of Pictorvision Inc and PV Labs USA merged. The newly merged company will
operate as Pictorvision Inc.

Accounting policies (continued)
Foreign currency translation

The Company undertakes transactions in both Canadian and US dollars and as a result, is exposed to
price risk due to fluctuations In foreign exchange rates. The Company's United Stales subsidiaries -
Pictorvision Holdings Inc and Pictorvision Inc. are considerad to be integrated foreign operations.

Fage §
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PV Labs Inc.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
September 30, 2016

{Unaudiled)

Monetary assets and liabiliies are translated at the exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet date.
Mon-monetary assets and liabllities are translated al historical rates. Revenues and expenses are
translated at average rates for the year except for amortization, which is translated at historical rates.
Translation gains or losses are included in net loss.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financlal statements in conformity Canadian accounting standards for private
enterprises requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liablliies and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the dale of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Significant
estimates are required to determine the allowance for doubtful accounts, amoriization of property, plant
and equipment, accrued liabllitles, warranty reserve, value of share options granted, deferred revenue,
valuation of investment in GeoDigital International Inc., valuation of long-lived assets and future tax
assets, Actual resulis could differ from these estimates.

Revanue

The Company’s revenues consist of one or more of sales of Gyro-Stabllized camera system, software,
engineering assistance, installation, training, and customer support. These services are set forth
separately in the contractual arrangements such that rice of the customer arrangement is
expected to vary as a result of the inclusion or exclus] lces. Multiple deliverable revenue
arrangements are to be divided into more than on ting and the criteria for revenue
recognilion are considered separately for each following criteria are met:

(a) the delivered item(s) has stag
ered item, the delivery or performance of
i II~_.r in the control of the Company.

(b) when a general right of re
undelivered tem is probabMgand sul

For those contracts where the se are not essentlal to the functionality of any other element of
transaction, the Company determin®s selling price for these services based upon vendor specific
objective evidence, third party evidence or management's best estimate, as appropriate.

The arrangement consideration is allocated to all deliverables based on thelr relative selling prices. As a
result of the hierarchy of selling prices, the Company Is required to detarmine the selling price for each
deliverable provided the conditions for separation have been met.

Rental revenues are recognized on a straight line basis over the rental term.
Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value, Cost is determined based on
standard cost. Net realizable value is the estimaled selling price of the inventory less the astimated
costs to make the sale. Cost for work in process and finished goods inventories Includes material cost,
direct labour cost and associated overhead.

Page &
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PV Labs Inc.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

September 30, 2016
(Unaudited)

2.

Accounting policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are recorded at cost. Amortization is based on their estimated usaful lives
using the stralght-ine method at the following rates:

Office fumitura 5 years
Computer eguipment 4 years
Rental equipmeant 10 years
Software 1 year
Equipment 3-5 years
Leaseholds 18 months
Impairment of long-lived assels

Long-ived assets are tested for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumslances indicate
that their carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized when their carrying
value exceeds the total undiscounted cash flows expected from their use and eventual disposition. The
amount of the impairment loss is determined as the excess of the carrying value of the asset over its falr

valua
Warranty reserves
The Company's products are covered by limited t generally range up to ane year. A

liabllity for the expected cost of warranty d whan services are sold and the related
revenue is recognized, The amg reflects an estimate of the expected future

i . In estimating the warranty liability, historical
| ur to mrrwl the product failure are considered. Should
ent costs differ from historical levels, ravisions to the

future product failure rates andfd
estimated warranty llability may b

Stock-based compensalion

The Company defermines the fair value of stock oplions or awards on their grant date and records the
fair value as compensation expense over the periad the stock options vest or the shares are allocated,
with a corresponding increase to contributed surplus. When options are exercised or awards are |ssued,
the amount of proceeds, together with the amount recorded in contribuled surplus are recorded in share
capital. The fair value of the options and awards Is determined using the Black-Scholes option pricing
model.

Income taxes

The Company follows the future income taxes method of accounting for income taxes. Under this
method, future income laxes are recognized based on the expecled future tax consequences of
differances between the carrying amount of balance sheet items and their corresponding tax basis,
using the enacted and substantively enacted income tax rates for the years in which the differences are
expected to reverse, Future income tax assets are recognized to the extent it is more likely than not they
will be realized.

Research and development tax credits

Research and development tax credits are recognized when the qualifying expenses have been made
and there is reasonable assurance of recelving them. Included In current assels is the expected receipt
in relation to the 2016 claim year.

Research and development tax credits are accounted for using the cost reduction approach. Under this
method cradits related lo current expenditures are included in the determination of the net income for
the period while credits related to the acquisition of assets are deferred and amortized into Income on
the same basis as the related assel.

Page 7
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PV Labs Inc.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

September 30, 2016
{(Unaudited)

2,

Accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are Initially recognized at fair value when the Company becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the financial Instrument. Subsequently, all financial instruments
are measured at amortized cost, with the exception of the Company's investment in GeoDigital
Intemnalional [nc. (recorded al fair value).

Transaction costs related to financlal instruments measured subsequent to initial recognition at falr value
are expensed as incurred. Transaction cosls related o other financlal instruments are added to the
carrying value of the asset or netied against the carrying value of the liability and are then recognized
over the expected life of the instrument using the effective interest method. Any premium or discount
related to an Instrument measured at amortized cost Is amortized over the expected life of the llem using
the effective interest method and recognized in net loss as interest incomea or expense.

With respect to financial assets measured at cost or amortized cost, the Company recognizes in net
eamings an impairment loss, if any, when there are indicators of impairment and it determines that a
significant adverse change has occurred during the peried in the expected timing or amount of future
cash flows. When the extent of impairment of a previous lten-down assel decreases and the
decrease can be related to an event occurring after th ent was recognized, the previously
recognized impairment loss is reversed to net earning eriod the reversal occurs.

rrants are allocated to the liability

The enlire proceads of the Issue of convertible

component; the equity component [s me s
Investments
2016 2015
5 $
2,377,134 common shares and (September
30, 2015 - 2,377,134 commoen shares
of GeoDigital International Inc. 564,427 564,427
150,000 commeon shares (September 30, 2015 - 150,000)
of 2112929 Ontario Inc., representing a 32% equity interest 25 25
564,452 564,452

The Investment in Accreon Inc. was sold in 2015 year for a gain of $331,213. An additional gain of
$2,877.37 was realized in 2018.
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PV Labs Inc.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
September 30, 2016
(Unaudited)
4.  Inventories
2016 2015
$ 5
Raw materials 1,279,942 1,204,638
Work in progress 410,859 12,412
Finished goods

1,690,801 1,217,050

The total amount of inventory expensed to cost of sales during the year amounted to $ 1,795,239 (2015
-5 1,412, 856).

Property, plant and equipment

5 2016 " 2015

umulated Net book Met book

lzation value value

$ $ §

Office fumiture 337,965 5,966 8,316
Computer equipment 244808 " 28,056 56,165
Rental equipmant 1 28, 024 1,610,984 517,040 209,198
Software 621,432 605,507 15,925 11,537
Equipment 404 180 319,759 B4.421 182,455
Leaseholds 46,778 46,778 - 2611
3,817,208 3,165,801 651,408 780,282

Cost and accumulated amortization of eguipment under capital lease totaled § 740,034 and $ 702,691
raspectively at September 30, 2016 (2015 - 5677,128 and $626,548 respectively).

Bank indebtedness

The Company has an authorlzed revolving line of credit of $600,000 (2015 - $600,000) which bears
interest at a 5.6% (2015 - interest at 5.6%) of which $508,000 is outstanding at September 30, 2016
(2015 - $271,000), The bank Indebiedness is secured by a General Security Agreement covering all
assets of the Company and ranking in priority to the long-term debt in Note 8. The financial covenanls
for the borrowing facility have not been updated from 2012 and require that the Company maintain on a
consolidated basis for the Canadian entity (1) A ratio of Current Assets to Current Liabilities of not less
than 1.25:1 and (i) a ratio of Total Liabilities to Tangible Net Worth of not greater than 2.5:1. The
Company was In violation of these covenants at September 30, 2016 and September 30, 2015, and a
waiver has been obtained.

Short-term debt

On August 4, 2016, the Company recelved approval of financing of up to §1,000,000 against its 2016
scientific research and experimental development tax credits (SR&ED') which bears interest at 15.00%
per year. At September 30, 2016 $700,000 is outstanding (2015 — 611,400). The loan is secured by a
General Security Agreement covering all assets of the Company and ranking in priority to the long-term
debt in Mote 8. The maturity date of the loan Is June 30, 2017.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

September 30, 2016
(Unaudited)

8. Long-term debt

On April 25, 2011, the Company secured a subordinate financing debt with the Business Development
Bank of Canada {"BDC") for $2,500,000. As at September 30, 2015, the Company has drawn
§2,466,517 (2015 - $2,466 517).

On January 31, 2014, the terms of the BDC loan were amended so as to provide (1) Maturity date of
December 23, 2020, (2) Fixed Interest rate at 6% per year for the 12 months ending January 31, 2015
and then 9% on February 1, 2015 until maturity In 2020, (3) The principal will be repaid over 85
consecutive monthly instalments of $37,500 commencing on July 23, 2015 followed by one instaliment
of $62,500 on December 23, 2020, On August 11, 2015, the terms of the loan were further amended to
have the monthly instaiments commence on December 23, 2015 with one payment of § 41,200 followed
by 682 monthly payments of § 40,980,

The Financizal covenants tied to the debl are that the Company must maintain, on a consolidated basis,
a long-term debt to equity ratio on a combined basis nol eding 0.25:1 (measured quarterly) and a
minimum working capltal amount (measured quarterty nting 10% of the Company’s combined
annual gmss sales of the previous year, revised yearl after each year end, for the duration of
nd the Convertible Debt (Note 8) are

e

30; 2015 met covenants).

Collateral on the debt consisi®g
the bank, corporate guaranieesgl
Pictorvision Holdings Inc., eand F
member of the board of directors ¥ :
policy frem this individual for $2,500,000. As per the amended agreement dated August 11, 2015
principal repayments in each of the five years is as follows:

eement from PV Labs Inc. subordinate only to
neral security agreements from PV Labs (USA] Inc.,
Inc. The debt also contains a condilional guarantee from a

$

2017 468,820
2018 511,440
2019 511,440
2020 511,440
2021 127,820
2,130,960
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

September 30, 2016
(Unaudited)

9}

10.

11.

Convertible loan

On January 30, 2013, the Company entered into a convertible loan with PVL Capital Corporation
("PWLCC") in the amount of $1,952,988. PVLCC is a related party as its shareholders are also
shareholders of the Company and 2 of the Company's Directors are shareholders of PVLCC. This
canvertible loan has been recorded at the exchange amount which approximates fair value and is the
amount of the consideration established and agreed fo by the related parties. At the oplion of the lender
the convertible loan, Including any outstanding interest, is convertible into shares at a conversion rate of
one (1) comman share for every sixty three cents ($0.63) of the converted loan. The collateral for the
convertible loan Is (1) a security position on the shares of GeoDigital Inc. and an interest in the
intellectual property owned by the Company both subordinated to the Royal Bank of Canada and the
Business Development Bank of Canada and (2) a general security agreement also subordinated to the
security interest of Royal Bank of Canada, Business Development Bank of Canada and equipment
leases. The convertible loan bears interest at 10% per annym and sets the due date as January 20,
2014. In addition to the cutstanding loan amount, P iming payment of an accrued
management fee equal to $0.50 of every $1.00 of loa ial management fee claimed as of
September 30, 2015 Is $976,494. The validity of loan are currently in dispute as the
shareholders did not approve cerlain of the { . The outcome of this dispute is not
known at this time. The ability assggia ent fea has not been reflected in these
consolidated financial statem

Capital lease obligations

The following Is a schedule of fut mum lease payments under capital leases:
§

2017 32,616
2018 8,605
2019 3,478

44,699
Less: amount representing average interest at 8.7% per annum (3,952)

40,747
Less: cuirent portion {29,210)

11,437
Promissory note payable

This amount is non-interest bearing and is secured by the specific asset purchased under a general
security agreement, Under the terms of the note, both the Company and the holder have the option to
demand sale of the secured asset, at which time each party would receive 50% of the sale proceeds
and tha note would be cancelled. The promissory note was forgiven in FY 2016 and the secured asset
was sold to the holder of the Promissaory note for 50% of the Market value of § 220,000 CND
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12. Share capital

Autharized , unlimited number

Common shares

Class A special shares, preferred, non-voting, non-cumulative at a maximum rate
of 8% per year, retractable, redeemable at $100 per share

Issued
2016 2015
$ B
6,880,828 (2015 - 6,880,828) common shares 4,790,037 4,790,037
Common shares
Shares Amount
# 5
Balance, October 1, 2014 6,880,828 4,790,037
Issued during the year - -
Transferred from contributed - -
Balance, September 30, 2015 6,880,828 4,790,037
Issued during the year 50,000 500
Balance, September 30, 2016 6,930,828 4,790,537
13. Stock based compensation
A summary of options issued and exercisable as at September 30, 2016 is as follows:
Weighted
average
contractual
Price Qutstanding life (years) Exercisable
$
0-0.34 150,000 0.55 150,000
1.27 - 5.79 70,000 0.67 70,000
220,000 0.61 220,000
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September 30, 2016

{Unaudited)

13.

14,

Stock based compensation (continued)
A summary of options issued and exercisable as at September 30, 2016 is as follows:

Welghted

average

contractual
Price Qutstanding life (years) Exercisable

$

0-0.34 150,000 06 150,000
1.27-5.79 70,000 0.7 70,000
220,000 0.6 220,000

The Company estimated the fair value of these options at the grant date using the Black-Scholes option
pricing model with the following assumplions for the year ended September 30, 2015 and the year
ended September 30, 2014: volatility - 30%, dividends 8% interest rate 1.35% to 3.38%; and an
expected life batween 1.3 to 2.7 years.

Compensalion expense of nil (2015 - 5 3,963 ) hagher ad in the consolidated statement of
operations in relation to the stock option award 5 ; ees In previous years that vested
during the year ending September 200 EIJ T gl recovery in previous year relates to a
change In estimate in regards i
managemeant stock options, t esulld in 8 compensation expense.

Lease commitments

Tha Company leases offices and equipment under operating leases. Fulure lease payments aggregate
$378,538 and include the following amounts payable over the next four years:

$

2017 165,127
2018 136,695
2019 67,380
2020 9,336
378,538
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

September 30, 2016
{Unaudited)

15. Investment tax credits

The Company has recorded scientlfic research and development income tax credits in the amount of
$1,300,328 as a reduction to expenses for fiscal 2016 (2015 - $1,348,274).

16. Income taxes

The Company has non-capital losses amounting to approximately $XX (2015 - $4,889,357) which can
ba appliad to reduce future Inmne taxes. These 105525 begin to exprra in zna:n The income tax han&ﬂt
related to $XX of these carried forward losses has been recorded in the accounts while $XX has not
been.

The Company also has approximately $5,618,457 (2015 - $4,352,537) in SRAED expenditures, which
can be used lo reduce future taxable income. These deduclions have an unlimited carryforward period.
The income tax benefits related to these expenditures have not been reflected in the accounts. In
addltion the Company has unused SR&ED investment lax cradits camyforward which can be used to
reduce future income taxes payable in the amount of $994,513 (2015 - $382,178). The expected future
recovery of these invesiment tax credits has not been reflected in the accounts.

17.  Statement of cash flows
Changes in non-cash working capital com

2016 2015

5 ¥

Accounts receivable (581,613)
Inventories 657,918
Prepaid expenses and deposits 86,631
Investment tax credits receivable (348,274)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (412,080)
Gowernment remittances -
Warmanty rasene 18,781
Due from related party 56,545
Deferred revenue 282,076
Income taxes recoverable and payable {15,727)
= {255,743)

18. Financial instruments
Interest rafe risk

The financial risk is the risk to the Company's income that arises from fluctuations in inlerest rates and
the degree of volatility of these rates. The Company does not use derivative Instruments to reduce its
exposure to interast rate risk as management does not consider tha risk to be material.

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk to the Company's income that arises from fluctuations in foreign
exchange rates and the degree of volatility of these rates. The Company Is exposed to currency risk as it
has U.S. based integrated subsidiaries and translation gains and losses that are included in net loss.
The Company is also exposed to foreign currency fluctuations resulting from its Canadian entity sales o
LS. customers. The Company does not use derivative instruments at this time to reduce its exposure to
forelgn currency risk.
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PV Labs Inc.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

September 30, 2016
{Unaudiled)

18. Financial instruments (continued)
Foraign currency risk (continued)

The consolidated balanca sheet includes the following amounls expressed in Canadian dollars with
respect to financial assets and llabilities for which cash flows are denominated in U.S. dollars where the
functional currency is Canadian dollars:

2016 2015

$ $

Cash 309,047 14,344
Accounts receivable 428133 1,504,913
Accounts payable 958,738 457,660

Credit risk

The Company provides credit to its customers in the n
based on contracted amounis sufficient to cover costs

Liguidity risk

The Company's objective is to have
monltors its cash balances and g
September 30, 2016, the moXs
accrued liabilities, short-term dé

urse of its operations. It obtains deposits
in projects.

t its liabilities when due. The Company
operalions to meet its requirements. As at

i ilities are: bank indebtedness, accounts payable,
bt and convertible debt.
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12:51 PM
1310117
Accrual Basis

PV Labs Inc.
Balance Sheet

As of 31 December 2016

ASSETS
Current Assets
Chequing/Savings
1010 - RBG 585 - CAD
1020 - RBC S&5 - UsSD
1099 - Petty Cash - CND
Total Chequing/Savings

Accounts Receivable

1110 - A/R - Trade - CND

1120 - A/R - Trade - USD

1140 : A/R - Pictorvision Inc.

1160 - A/R - Pictorvision Holdings

1181 - Acerued Accts Recble-Trade CAD
Total Accounts Receivable

Other Current Assets
1200 + Inventory
1210 - Work In Progress
1250 - ITC Tax Receivable
1300 - Deposits - CAD
1310 - Deposits - USD
1340 - Deposits - Insurance - USD
1350 « Prepaids - CAD
Total Other Current Assets

Total Current Assets

Fixed Assels
1600 - Accumulated Depreciation
1610 + Computer Equipment
1615 : Leasehold Improvements
1620 + Office Furniture
1630 - Rental Equipment
1640 : Equipment - Other
1650 - Software

Total Fixed Assels

Other Assets
1700 - Future Tax Asset - Long Term
1800 - Investment in GeoDigital
1810 « Investment in PV Holdings
1830 + Investment in 2112929 Ontarioln
1850 « Investment in PV Labs [USA), In
1885 + Void Entries & Clearing Account

31 Dec 16

(27,313.11)
410,238.92
40.30

382 866.11

26.284.64
28538418
1.658,860.03
B8,548.25
1.481.60

1,081,568.70

1,121,864.41
553,809.62
1,265,000.00
50,511.14
14,810.01
6,759.14
19,475.80

304233012

5,406, 854.93

(2,479,907.25)
250,093 42
46,778.16
343,923.49
92397712
413,397.11
632,940.71

131,212.78

{0.13)
564 42702
134.08
25.00
100.00
730.42
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12:51 PM PV Labs Inc.

13/01/17 49
Accrual Basis Ba[anﬂe Sheet
As of 31 December 2016
31 Dec 18
Total Other Assets 565,416.35
TOTAL ASSETS §,103,494.04

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable

2110 - A/P - Trade - CAD 47196566
2120 - AJP - Trade - USD 1,289,304.39
Total Accounts Payable 1.861,270.05

Othar Current Liabilities

2400 - Accrued Liabllities - CAD 331,508.14
2410 - Accrued Liabilities - USD 62,636.98
2431 « Accrued Inventory - Max Ace. 260.00
2440 - Accrued Payroll 130,405.44
2450 - Accrued Vacation 59,200.00
2451 « Accrued Interest 644,020 88
2460 » Customer Advances - CND 453,094.31
2470 - Customer Advances - USD 84128413
2630 - Current lease commitments 23.878.37
2850 - Current Portion of BDC Lean 458,820.00
2711 - Warranty Reserve - PV Labs 207 ,4568.99
2800 - Income Taxes Payable - Federal 6,704.33
2835 - SRED Loan 1,000,000.00
2930 - RBC Bank Loan 442 000.00
Total Other Current Liabilities 4,671281.55
Total Current Liabilities 6,532 551.60

Long Term Liabilities

2940 - Long-term Lease contracts 8,880.07

2541 - Convertible Debt 1,952 987.92

2960 - BDC Loan 1,637,027.53

Taotal Long Term Liabilities 3,588,004.52

Total Liabilities 10,131,656.12
Equity

3010 - Retained Earnings (8,.200,901.26)

3030 - Contributed Surplus 451,904.49

3040 - Shareholders Equity 4,780,536.57

3080 - Paid Up Capital (430,707.12)

MNet Income (538,884.75)



12:61 PM
1300117
Accrual Basis

Total Equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY

PV Labs Inc.

Balance Sheet

As of 31 December 2016
31 Dec 16

(4,028,062.08)

6,103,454.04
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Oct - Dec 16

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income
4000 - Revenue
4135 - Revenue - Upgrade 423 860,48
4140 - S&5 - Services 0.00
4146 - &5 - PSlVision 544 35550
Total 4000 - Revenue 968,215.99
Total Income 968,215.99
Cost of Goods Soid
5001 - Direct Costs
5010 - Employee Costs, Direct
5012 - Salary & Wages - 3835 50,330.84
5014 - Overtime - S&5 0.00
5016 - Group Insurance Benefits - S&5 3,845.66
6018 : Payroll Taxes - CPP & El - S&5 140523
5019 - EHT - 345 986.28
Total 5010 - Employee Costs, Direct 56,577.01
5139 - Less-Direct Labour & O/H Appld (5,693.96)
5040 - Freight
5041 - Freight 10,818.15
6042 - CustomsiBrokerage Fees - 5&5 1,901.88
Total 5040 - Freight 12,720.03
5050 - Travael, Direct
5051 + Hotel, Direct - &S 16,187.77
5052 - Airfare, Direct - 585 10,724.16
5053 - Meals & Ent, Direct - S&5 6,938.06
5054 - Mileage, Direct - S&5 31476
5055 - Vehicle & Other, Direct - SES 522283
Total 5050 - Travel, Direct 38,357.58
5070 - Shop supplies 1,665.79
5071 - Shop Tools 267.58
5080 - Cellular - 5&5 i1g.02
5100 - Rework 481.76
5109 - Handling fee 128.60
5110 - Material Proces 10,9890.74
5120 - Warranty costs 11,145.73
5410 + Material
5060 - Materials - S&5 112,571.81
5412 - Material Variance 4.116.01
5413 - Inventory Revalue 6,859.36
5414 - Adjust Stock {583.89)



52

6140 + Bank, Interest & Penailties

5415 - Cycle Count B5.14
5417 - Scrap 1.214.35
5418 - Purchase Variance 11,766.13
5431 - Kanban {32.16)
Total 5410 - Material 135,886.75
5510 + Sub-Contract 269,179.20
5300 - Other - Penalty 22,757.96
Total 5001 - Direct Costs 555,904.09
5002 - Manufacturing Overhead Costs
5200 - Employee Costs, MOH
5201 - Employee Salary & Wages 85,208.62
5203 - Group Insurance Benefits 287925
£205 - Payroll Taxes - CPP & El 294519
6206 - EHT 1,692.28
§211 - IRAP funding (2,785.00)
Total 5200 - Employee Costs, MOH 80,940.34
5215 - Less-Indirect Labour & OH Appld (0,583.84)
5230 - Gellular, MOH - S&3 45.48
Total 5002 - Manufacturing Overhead Costs 81,401.98
Total COGS 637,306.07
Gross Profit 330.,908.92
Expense
6000 - General & Admin Expenses
6010 - Employee Costs, GEA
6020 - Salary & Wages 116,768.76
6032 - Group Insurance Benefits 3917.51
6036 - Payroll Taxes - CPP & EI 648.09
6038 - EHT 2,286.54
Total 6010 - Employee Costs, G&A 123,620.90
6100 + Insurance
€112 - Insurance - Aircraft Products 233018
6116 * Insurance - General Liability 8,440 .81
6118 - Insurance - Nonowned Alrcraft 1,081.87
6120 + Insurance - Ocean Marine 41610
6135 - Insurance - WSIB 4,500.00
6137 - Insurance - DO 1,944.00
6139 - Insurance - Key Man 1.964.25
Total 6100 - Insurance 20677.31



€142 - Bank Charges

6144 - Credit Card Charges
Total 6140 - Bank, Interest & Penalties

6150 - Courier & Postage
6152 - Courier
6154 « Postage
Total 6150 - Courler & Postage

6165 - Employee Activities
6170 - Facility Expenses
6172 - Janitorial
6176 * Rent
G178 + Security - Facility
6175 - Security - IT

6179 - Facllity Malntenance

6180 - Utilities
6182 - Hydro & Gas

6184 - Telephone & Telecomm

6186 - Internet
6188 - Telephone

Total 6184 - Telephone & Telecomm

Total 6180 - Utilitles

Total 6170 - Facility Expenses

6200 - Leases
5210 - Equipment Leases
5220 - Photocopier Lease
G221 - Software lease
Total 6200 : Leases

6230 - Office Supplies
6235 - Supplies, IT
6240 + Supplies, Office
6245 - Supplies, Kitchen

Total 6230 - Office Supplies

6250 - Qutside Services
6255 - Boltled Water
6290 - Payroll Service
Total 6250 - Qutside Services

6265 - Professional Fees
6270 - Accounting & Tax
6275 - Consulting

3,713
2,235.99
G,007.30

180.10
248.32

438.42

G01.82

2,383.86
30,256.26
84.00
£,200.00
385.74

687688

388237

3,671.79
7,654.16

14,531.04

52,840.90

G1.50
2,320.77
3,781.50

6,163.77

1,783.09
1.078.60

250.44
313213

89,85
1,169.43
1,259.28

7,000.00
18,000.00
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6706 - P51 - Materials

6280 - Legal 617.92
6295 - Tralning & Education 90.00
Total 6265 - Professional Fees 25,707.82
6350 - Travel, GEA
6365 - Meals & Entertainment 67.91
B370 - Transportation & Other 23.30
Total 6350 + Travel, G&A .21
6395 - Cellular 811.00
6396 + Dues Fees & Subscriptions 287.85
6800 - Shared Service Fees
6805 - Contra Shared Service Fees (15,978.40)
Total 6800 - Shared Service Fees (15,978.40)
Total 6000 - General & Admin Expenses 225 761.41
6380 - Depreciation Expense 37.478.78
6500 - RED Expenses
6510 - Employee Costs, R&D
6520 - Salary & Wages 376.,560.12
6528 - Overtime - RED 0.00
6532 - Group Insurance Benefits 11,586.32
6536 - Payroll taxes CPP and El 2132.08
6538 - EHT Tarea
Total 6510 - Employee Costs, R&D 397 ,660.73
6560 - Supplies
6672 - Supplies RED - PV15 15.18
Total 6560 + Supplies 15.16
6600 - Prof. Fees
6620 + Training & Education 220.00
Total 6600 - Prof. Fees 220.00
6680 - Talephone & Telecomm
6685 - Cellular 1.310.61
Total BE80 - Telephone & Telecomm 1.310.61
6690 - Travel, R&D
6698 - Transportation & Other 3316
Total 6690 - Travel, RED 3318
6700 - R&D Programs
6704 « Minl Eclipse IRAD 18,708.63
6713 - Mini Eclipse - NRE 9,381.35

12,201.91
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6707 - PSI - Contractors
6708 - SO 346-PVU IRAD-Eng Support WOs
6710 - PV 15 - Materials
6727 - PV 15 - NRE Costs
6711 - PV 15 - Contractors
6726 - PV 15 - Freight
Total 6700 - R&D Programs

Total 6500 - RED Expenses

6900 - Sales & Marketing
6906 - Employee Costs, M&S
6915 - Salary & Wages - 5&5
6935 - Group Insurance Benefits - S&5
6945 - Payroll Taxes - CPP & El - 585
6946 - EHT - 5&5
Total 6805 + Employee Costs, M&S

6950 - Markating Costs

6958 - Website expenses

6985 + Assoclations & Memberships
Total 6850 - Marketing Costs

6960 - Travel - Selling
6969 - Travel - Alrfare
6961 - Travel - Meals & Entertainment
6968 - Travel - Hotel
6862 - Travel - Transportation & Other
Total 6960 - Travel - Selling

6970 - Cellular - Sales
Total 6800 - Sales & Marketing

Tolal Expanse

Met Ordinary Income

Other Income/Expense
Other Incoma

8040 - Mizcellaneous Income

Tetal Other Income

Other Exponse
7050 - Exchange Gain/Loss
BOOD - Interest Expense
Total Other Expense

(9.66)
200.00
38,231.58
3,883.22
0.00
4,612.00
£7,300.03

486,548.60

BB,645.62
1,956.01
0.00
1,735.23
§2,336.85

132.14
269.97
402.11

588.43
1,822 64
412.08
207.08
3.030.21

746.73
96,5150

8485,304.80

(515,394 88)

500000
500.00

(15.160.45)
139,160,332
123,999.88
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Met Other Income

Met Income

(123,499.88)

(638,894.76
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LOOPSTRA NIXON w

BARRISTERS AND SOLICITORS

R Graham Phoenix
Drirect Line; (4 16) 7484776
E-mail: gphoenixgloonixcom

January 18, 2017

File No, TBD

VIA COURIER

PV LABS INC. PV LABS INC.

1074 Cooke Blvd. 175 Longwood Road — Suite 400A
Burlington, ON L7T 4A8 Hamilton, ON LBP DA

(Mafing Address) {Ragistarad Office)

Dear SirfMadam:

Re: DEMAND FOR PAYMENT
and SERVICE OF SECTION 244 NOTICE

We are the solicitors for PV Capital Corporation (the "Lender”) in respect of the matters set out
herein.

[ndebledness

Pursuant to the promissory note dated January 18, 2013, the term sheat dated January 18,
2013 and the loan agreement date June 30, 2013 (together, the “Loan Agreements”), the
Lender agreed to and did advance certain funds to PV Labs Inc. (the “Borrower”) on a secured
basis.

As at January 18, 2017, the Borrower is indebted to the Lender pursuant to the Loan
Agreements in the aggregate amount of $4.111,396.45, plus interest, fees and costs continuing
to accrue (the “Indebtedness”).

In addition. the Borrower, is liable for such legal costs and other enforcement costs as may be
incurred by Lender in respect of enforcement of the Loan Agreements and the Security (defined
below), from time to time, the particulars of which can be provided upon request (collectively,
the "Costs™).

The Borrower is in default of its obligations under the Loan Agreements, including but not limited
to is payment obligations thereunder.

[LErEET |
Weodbine Place, 135 Queens Plate Drive, Suite 500, Torents, Ontario, Canada MW &V7 LawExchange
Tok 4167464710 Fax: 416.744.8319 loopstranizon.com A
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Page 2
Securily

As security for the payment and performance of all of its indebtedness, liabilities and obligations
to the Lender, the Borrower executed:

(a) a general security agreement in favour of the Lender dated January 17, 2013;

(b) a security agreement in favour or the Lender dated January 18, 2013 respect of certain
intellectual property; and

(c) a share pledge in favour of the Lender dated January 18, 2013 in respect of a cerlain
shares of GeoDigital International Inc.,

(collectively, the “Security”), which Security is registered under the Ontario Personal
Property Securily Act.

Demand

As a result of the Borrower's defaults and the Lender's rights under the Loan
Agreements and the Security, the Lender is entitled to and does hereby demand from the
Borrower the immediate payment in full of the Indebtedness and Costs by or before

5:00p.m. on January 28, 2017.

To obtain an updated pay-out statement, including Costs, and to arrange delivery of payment,
please contact the undersigned.

If the Borrower fails to pay the Indebtedness and Cests on or before January 28, 2017, the
Lender will pursue such legal rights and remedies for the collection of such amounts as it may
deemn fit, including without limitation the right to exercise any and all rights and remedies
available at law, under the Loan Agreements and the Security, and in equity. The Lender may
exercise such rights without further notice to the Borrower.

In the event that the Borrower qualifies as an “insolvent person” within the meaning of such term

under the Bankruplcy and Insolvency Act, we enclose herewith a Notice of Intention to Enforce
Security pursuant to section 244 of the Bankruplcy and Insolvency Act.

[LETs4ETR |



LOOPSTRA NIXON .

BARRISTERS AND SOLICITORS

Page 3

In the interim, the Lender expressly reserves all of its rights to take whatever measures it may
consider necessary or appropriate to preserve and protect its interests and lo pursue its
remedies under the Loan Agreements and the Security, any statute, at common law and/or in
equity, including without limitation the right to seek the appointment of a receiver by a Court of
competent jurisdiction. Nothing in this letter shall be construed as a waiver of such rights.

Yours very truly,

LOOPSTRA NIXON LLP

Enclosure

JLATSLS 7 1)
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NOTICE OF INTENTION TO ENFORCE SECURITY
(Subsection 244(1) of the Bankruptcy and Insolvency Act)

[THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF THIS NOTICE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE AN ACKNCWLEDGEMENT THAT THE CREDITOR 1S OBLIGED
T SEND THIS NOTICE DR THAT SECTION 244 OF THE BANKRUPTCY AND INSDULVENCY ACT APPUES TO THIS CASE OR AN
ALLEGATION THAT THE DEBTOR IS AN INSOLVENT PERSOM WITHIN THE MEANING OF THE BANKRUPTCY AND INSOLVENCY ACT.)

TO: PV LABS INC. PV LABS INC,
1074 Cooke Blvd, 175 Longwood Road - Suite 400A
Burington, OM L7T 4A8 Hamilton, ON LEP 0A
(Mailing Office) [Ragistered Offics)

TAKE NOTICE that:

1 PV Capital Corporation (the “Lender”), a secured creditor, intends to
enforce its security on all of your present and after acquired properly, assets and
undertaking and/or any proceeds thereof.

2. The security that is to be enforced comprises;

(a)  a general security agreement in favour of the Lender dated January 17,
2013;

(b)  a security agreement in favour or the Lender dated January 18, 2013
respect of certain intellectual property; and

(c) a share pledge in favour of the Lender dated January 18, 2013 in respect
of a certain shares of GeoDigital International Inc.,

(collectively, the "Security").

3. The total amount of indebtedness secured by the Security and sought via
the demand delivered herewith is $4,111,396.45 as at January 18, 2017, together with
accruing interest and all other charges and expenses of enforcement claimable
thereunder.

(LOrMETRY])
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Page 5
4, The Lender will not have the right to enforce the security until the expiry
of a 10-day period following the sending of this Notice, unless you consent to an earlier
enforcement by execution of the attached waiver.
DATED at Toronto, this 18" day of January, 2017,

PV CAPITAL CORFORATION, by its
solicitors Loopstra Nixon LLP

§ o i ape

62

Per; /R Graham Phoenix f

WAIVER

The undersigned hereby waives the nolice period provided for under
section 244(2) of the Bankrupicy and Insoivency Act, R.S.C. 1985, ¢. B-3, as amended,
and consents to the immediate enforcement by PV Capital Corporation of its security
described in the attached Mofice of Intention to Enforce Security dated January 18,
2017.

DATED at , Ontario this day of , 2017,

PV LABS INC.

per:
Title;

JLOTHITR L}



This is Exhibit “D” to the Affidavit of Mark Chamberlain
sworn on January 37?,12[)1?

A Commissioner for the taking of affidavits, etc.
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This is Exhibit “E” to the Affidavit of Mark Chamberlain
sworn on January a‘:f‘pﬁ{}l 7

M

A Commissioner for the taking of affidavits, etc.
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AMENDED AND RESTATED SUBORDINATION AND PRIORITIES AGREEMENT

BETWEEN:

AND:

AND

Dated the ___ day af January, 2013
Frovincd gf Ontario

BDC CAFITAL INC, 1 wholly-cwned sabsidlory of
BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT BANK OF CANADA,

(hereinafer ealled "BDCTY,

ROYAL BANK OF CANADA
(herelnafier called the “Bask™);

VL CAPITAL CORPORATION
{hereinafier calied the "FVL")

PV LABS INC.
{heseinafier called the “Borrower™);

PV LABS (USA) INC.

FICTORVISION HOLDINGE INC.

PICTORVISION INC.

TRIVARIS LTD-

MARK CHAMBERLAIN

mhhmﬂ]lmﬁmmmlmMIm.uﬂ
*Conseoting

Mark Chemberiain hereinafier collectively called the
Partieas”)
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WHO DECLARE AS FOLLOWS:

WHEREAS the Bank has granted or intends 1o granl 1o Barrower various eredit facilit'es nol excoeding
on npzregale ameunl of Eight Hundred and Twenty-Five Thousand Dodles ($825,000,00) pursiant to &
fucllities leiter dated Murch 8, HltumnMSani.ﬂmIWMhlmnhdu
Schedule "A" hereln (herelnafier collectively called the “Bank Credit", as It or they may have been snd
may In the future be amended, modified, replaced or restated from time bo time) In guarantes of which,
Infer alfa, the Borrower has granted or Intends to grant In faveur of he Bank various security (the “Bank
ie;?iw (the "Bauk Credit” and ihe “Bank Security” being hereinafier callestively celled e “Bank
%

WHEREAS BDC subminied to the Bomower an offer of financing dated February 24, 2011 &s emended
Muarch 3, 201 | and a5 it may have been and may in the fusure be furthar amended, modified, replaced or
restated from fime lo time (the “BDC Ofer'), relating to, fnver aila, the granting of & subordinated Joan
In the amownt of Two Milllon Five Hundred Thouzand Dallars (52,500,000.80), the condiiions For which
are provided In the BOC Offer o5 well 23 Ini n loan sgreement dated the 25® day of April, 2011 (Ihe "Loan
Agresment”), coples of which are appended hereto as Schedule “B" In guarantee of which, inter alia, the
Barrower has granted or Intends to grant vardous security In favour of BOC (collectively the “BDC
Security”) (ihe “BDC Offer™, the *Lean Agreement” and the “BDC Securlty” belng herelnafier
collectively ealled the “Subordinated Debt™);

WHEREAS PVL submltied to the Borrower an offer of financing dsted Jenuary 15, 2013 and accepled
Janunry 1B, 2013, and s i may have bean mquhhmmhﬁmmﬂmﬂmupm
of restaled fram time to Ume, whersby PVL has committed to providing up to Two Million Seven
Hundred and Fifty Thousand Dollars ($2,750,000.00) In loans to the Bomower (the “Commltraent™),
ceples of which are sppended hersto ot Schedule “C, In guarantes of which, fnrer alla, the Borower has
ganted or Intends to grant to PVL an axsignment of mnd security Tnlerest in the 1ax credlt payable to it
from the Cenads Revenue Agency tnder the “Sclentific Research and Experimental Developenent Tax
Incentive Program™ for the Borrower's 2012 tax year (the “SR&ED Tax Cred”) and fo pledge all of its
shares in the caplial of GeoDigital Interational Ine. (the “GeoDigitial Posltion™ slong with vadous
other securlty In favowr of PVL (the “FVL Security™)the "Commitment” end the “FVL Becardty”
belng herelnafler callectively called the “FVL Debt™);

WHEREAS the Lenders, a3 defined n Seetion 1,122 hereal, hereby wish to 22 forth thelr respective
rights 1nd remedies In respect of the sscurity granted by the Bomower to each of them;

NOW THEREFORE AND IN CONSIDERATION OF THE COVENANTS AND CONDITIONS
HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED, AND FOR GOOD AND VALUABLE CONSIDERATION, THE
PARTIES HERETO AGREE AS FOLLOWS:

.  INTERPRETATION
1.l Deflnithons,
Except as otherwise provided hereln or unless the context otherwise mquires,

capitalized
terms and expressions used In this Agresment and |is preamble shall have the mesnlng szt
forth below:




.13

1.1.3

L6

1.1.7

L.1.3

1.19

1.1.10

»additlonal Guarsnfors™ mesns all of the Subsidlary Body Corporaies and
memmthMMlluMﬂlﬂmm or indirecily by

the Bommonven;

=5 Fillats™ means any Person which, direcily or indirectly, contrels or (=
canitrolled by or Is under commeon contrel of mnather. For the purposes af this
defintian, *eontrol® (Including with correlative meanings, the ferms “controtled
by* end *under common contral with®), as used with respact 1o any Peraon,
shall mean the possession, direstly or indirecily of the power to direct or cause
the direction of the management and policles of such Person, whelher tirough
hmﬁﬂmﬂﬁu.ﬁ“mﬁﬂﬂwqumwﬁmvm
Fn:r greater certalnty, the term “AfMliaie” Includes & Subsldlary Body
rparate;

up greement® and “Subordination Agreement™ means this Subordiration and
Priorldes Agrecment;

»gank Event of Defeut™ meens s Default or Demand for paymen purnuiat to
any Loan Docurments relating to the Bank Debi;

“Bank Motice of Defuult™ has the meaning wscribed thereto in Paragragh 4.1
hereln;

=Bani Security™ means, individuslly or collectively, sll Security grented or 10
be mhﬂmﬂ-mudhnﬂm|wmwmnr
the Debty

“BDC Event of Default™ means an Event of Defaull pursuent to any Lean
Documents relating to the Bubardinated Debt;

“BDC Notles of Intention™ has the meaning ascribed therelo in Subsectlon 3.7

WWMMMmmIIMﬂIMm;mMuu
hmdmmmﬂmnmmmnpqnmtd
performan= of the Subordinated Debt

“Pomower® means PV Labs Ine. et determined In accordmcs with the relevant
Bank Credit or the BDC Offer or Loan Agreement, or the Commitment us the
uwh.ldlwhﬂniwlﬂwlmdm

WWMﬂWMMﬂhammhm
without limitstlon, each Additional Quarenton

“Bomowsr Qroup Asses™ means (v) all of the present and afler scquired
underiaking, property and assels, real and personal, movable end Immovsble,
of whatsoever nstire mnd kind and whesesoever situste of the Borrower and Iis

75
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LL

I.Ll4

LL15

LLI&

LLI7
L1l

1.120

1.1.21

amumumm.hﬂwwmmwmhm
Barrower, any Affillate of the lmnd-mmnhmlﬂwnmn

“Business Day(s)" mears , exeepl Suturday or § , when the Bank
hnpumdlzqhﬂmhﬂm T

“Cash Proceeds of Reallzotion™ means the sggregats of (1) all Proceeds of
Realiration In the form of cash, and (11} all cash procesds of the sale or other
disposhion of non-cash) Procesds of Reslization, which are avallable 1o the

"Defaull™ means the occurrenca of any of the defaults or events of default
specified in eny anmmumwlnnr&wm{dlulhmw
Demand or sccelerate payment af eny obligntion, elther immedintely or after s
mp-nhdurmwlud.wmnmurw member of the Borrower Group o
pay any emount which is payable to the Bank on demand wiihin the time
specified for payment in & Demand mads by the Bank;

“Demand™ mesns any notifleatlon by & Lender 1o any member of the Bomower
Group of s demand for payment under any Loan Documents or Securlty;

*Dollars™ or “$* means Lawfil meaney of Canada;

roay be;

WFMIMMbmmﬁﬂﬂuhﬁmh
wqumwmmwhmummumm

uﬂwmhmﬂﬂhhhmmmllﬂhl
consistent manner;

WﬂWthmMm&ﬂmmM
14.5 hereln, end any olher reglonal, municipal, local ar other subdivision of
that province, any oler governmental organization of such Jurbdiction,
Ine
or

» Gomm g fion
e ot diclal, reguiatoey o
muﬁnﬁuﬂmimuhlunuuruuhud
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i.124

1125

1127

{wmﬂwmuﬁwmnﬂiﬂuﬂwnﬂummﬂh
wmﬂhﬁunmﬂuhhkmm“hm”m.ﬂmw
some of thess Intellectual Property fghts;

“Lsnders™ mean, ay the case muy be, the Bark, BDC, or PYL or any
eombination thereal}

“Life wmw*mﬁtllhhmnﬂ:ytuhw&nmm
nucmw.-hd#wmhuhhw,mmﬁ In Schedule
“[" atached hereto;

WL oan Documents™ mesn any lelter of Intent, loan offer or cther agrecment
rdiﬂuhhtmmimdmlnmmacﬂmwm ihe Bank Debt or the
Mﬁbﬂtwhmmhmhum:mmuh s amended
from time to lime;

“procseds of Realization” or any part thereof mesns all proceeds (including
money, choses in action, secirlties, assels and ather property) derived from eny
miwdl:pulﬁnnuﬁnruhﬂmﬁmnﬂlnnﬂllmim proceedings with
respect fo any of the Bomower Ormup Assels (n) wfter any demand, (b) upon
any dissolutlon, liquidation, winding-up, reorganization (including any
mlmmwmlnﬂmqnd{ﬁnﬂ]mw
resrganization under the Companies' Creditors Arrengement Ach (Canada),
balkruptey, Insolvency or recelvesship of any member of the Bomower Croup
ﬂwmhwmnmhmmﬂulﬂn;ﬂhhmwﬂwhmmu
simitar thereta, (<) upon the enforcement of, or eny sctlon taken with respect
qwdhm.{ﬂnmeﬁﬂnmnkwwuhn
WMHManMlmuﬂwmm
Bormower Oroup Astels of any part of them or representing Indemnlty or
mwnnﬂuﬁrhnntminulnmwﬂm I the businesy, operation
or uunm;am«mmmmwu
mmy.nhuwhlcﬁun.nnﬂﬁu.mmmm).mmulmt
of the exerclse of sy right of set-aff or uther stmliar rght or remedy, In each
case net of all costs, charges and expenses or Labilities Incurred In connection
mm.mmmmmwmmmﬂﬂﬂmm
&ll proper costs, chiges, expenss and labllltles of any Recelver;

nnhhﬂeﬂndmduunﬂﬂuﬂun-ﬁhlmﬁrdﬁﬂwm
sm,wmmwumwymmunﬂm
mﬂ_ﬂmumwuwﬂhmphmmmlnhmwm
Bormrower of same;

mHmemmﬁMMuﬂm
Murmlummdhmmwnﬂthh
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21

prevall, provided that nathing In thls Agreemient is Intended 1o or will impair, a5 belween
ny member of the Barower Group and any of the Lenders, the obligations ol any member
of the Berrower Qroup o piy the Bani Debl, the Subordinaied Det, or the PVL Debl, i
spplicable, when due. For grester certalnty, as between each Lender sad Eny member of
the Borrewer Group, the applieable Losn Documents shall prevall.

Mo Rights Cenferred an Borrower Group. MNothing In this Agreement will be consirued &
confering wﬂﬂhmwmbﬂﬂmlﬂumumwwuﬁim The
terms and condhtions hereol ere and will be for the sole and exclusive benefit of the
Lenders. Each member of the Bormower Group, by lis executon of this Agreement, hereby
agress to be bound by, and will act In secordance with, the terms, provisions and intent of
thkﬁml;hmw,mhlmmﬂmmmwmumwmrﬂm benefit or
sdvaniage in nhh-mhmﬁmmwmhﬁmwhmmn
modified, supplemented or restated withewt netles to, or the cansent of, any member of the
Borrower Oroup, Each member of the Borrower Group Iiereby consents o each Lender
providing the other Lender with such Informatlon, finsnclal or otherwise, regarding any
member of the Bomower Group, the Bank Debt, the Subordinsted Debt, or the FVL Debt
umlmn.mdhmwumhlumdlhmh the Lenders from time to
time.

Accounting Termis. Each aceouniing term wsed in this Agreemenl has the meanlng
genenlly ascribed 1o it by GAAP inless another definifion Is glven hereln, wnd any
uﬁrmunnhmi-bﬁnu&mwhmumunnmmh:mmw;h
its presenistion In the appropriste sistement established In sccordance with OAAP ay
modifled from time 1o time by any accounting norms adopted by the Canadlan Instiicle of
Cherterad Aceoontanls.

Singular Plural. In this Agreement, wonds i11|:-|1.|.'lll'|,|:1:!‘|:|IN||.!.I.Ii nlleL ﬁﬂ:hﬁlﬂlh
plural and vice varza, and person (or persons) Includes an Individus company,

government, govemmentsl bedy or agency, unincorporaled sssoclatlon or
parinership. Information that s provided in the schedules herelo shall be conslstens wilk
the definftlons, terms and condltions of thls Agresment.

Consent. Esch of the Lenders hereby consents to the:
1.8.1 Indebledness and obligations provided for in the Bank Credit, the Losn
Agresment, and the
1.83 crestion and issuance by the Bomrower to the Bank of the Dank Security, to
BDC of the BDC Security, and to PVL of the PYL Security; and
1.83 existence of the Bank Deit, the Subardinated Debl, and the PVL Debt
genenlly.

any olher provision of this Agreement, provided that () PVL hes sdvanced

umﬂumttmwmmm“mm&nmmhmm
business dey following exsection of this Apreement by all the partles heveto, (i) all
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indebledness and liability of the Borrower to BDC is repaid in full by no laler than June 15,

such repayment bring anficipaied 1o ccour from the proceeds of sale of the shares
‘E ref [] ] below, end ([I1) PVL has nol received any payments from the
91* Bomower or eny parenl of subsldiary thereof before BOC has been repaid in Mull, save and

excep! for psymient of the SR&ED Tax Credil end regular seheduled intesest poyments

E{, {aubject 1o Aricle 7):

211 the BOC Security and the Bank Security sre hercby postponed and subordinated

Credit nd e CeoDiglial Fosliion solely, 1o the catent of the Bormwver's
incisbtedizess fo PYL from flme to thme, together with all secrved Interest hereon
and ull easts, cherges and expenses Incurred by PYL in coaneciion Merewliy,

12 Other than the PYL Security with respest to the SREED Tex Credlt and the
CleoDigltal Position, the PYL Debt and FVL Secuslty shsll in nll other reapects be
fully subondinate to the Bank Debl and the Subordinated Debt, and the Bank
Sucurlty snd the BDC Secusity will have pricrity to the full extent of the Bank
Debt end the Subordinated Debt, respectively, over the PVL Debt and 1he FVL
Security In all respecis at all times.

to (he sccurity constimted by (he PVL Sceurdty with respect to the SREED Tax
4
2

22 PVL wgrees with the Bank and BOC thal, sl any tme, the Dorower may moke and (e Boik
and BDC muy sccepd any paymenl or propeyment In respect of the Bank Debd andfor Lhe
Subordinated Debi respectively; or any parl thereaf, whether or nol any Default has
gecurred, oll In sccosdance with the Bank Credil snd {he BDC OfTer nod Loan A greement,
tespectively, Nathing contalned in His Article 2 will prevent, mll or restrict the Bank
anddor BDC tn any manner from exercising all or any of their rights or remedics olherwlse
permitied under the termis of the Bank Security nnd the BDC Seeurlty In coanection with the
Bank Dbt and the BDE Debl, respeciively.

2.3 For greater cestalnty, the subordinatlon hereln provided shell spply 19 any guarantee granted
now of hereafier by any Subsidiary Body Corporate, any Affillete of the Bormower of any
Addirions] Guaranior fo the Lenders.

2.4 Unless otherwize acknowledged In writing by PVL. the subordlnation peovided in this
Article 2 does not alfect the rights of PVL In any suretyship granted in Its favour by eny
persan, related ar nol to the Bommower, other than the sureyship granted by n Consenling
Pagg 8 Subsidiary Bedy Corporefe, any affillate 8¢ any Addiional Guoreninrs, nor the rights

_,,nﬁ'?ﬂ. in any Security held In connection with such surchyship,

2.5 Subject to [he foregaing provisions, the subardinatlons and enls provided in (his
Asticle 2 shall remaln In foree for us Jong as the Barrower hot not repald Its Indebledness in
Full to sy of the Lnnd':ﬂ.minﬂlhﬂ'mﬂuﬁ.ﬂﬂﬂ.ﬂrl’ﬂ has cancelled the Bank
Credit, the BDC Offer and Loan Agreement, o the PVL Instruments as (he case may be,
and shall upply 11 8l events and elrcumstances regardless ol

250 any priodty ciherwlse glven by law the PVL Security In conneclion with the
Borrower Group Assets;

252 the respective dates of ¢aecutlon and regletratlon attachment or perfectinn ol the
PVL Scrurity, BDC Securlty as well &s the Bank Security;
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indebiedness and liability of the Borrower to BDC s repaid In full by no laler than June 15,

3, such repayment being anficipated fo eccur from the proceeds of ssle of the shares
referme below, and (1) PVL has not received any payments from the
Borower or any parenl of subsidiary thereof before BDC hos been repaid in full, save and
excapl for payment of the SREED Tax Credil end reguler scheduled interest paymenis

: ,]ﬂ . (subject to Article 7);
! o 2.1.1 the BDC Security and the Bank Seeurity are hereby postponed and subordinated

to the security constituted by the PVL Security with respeet to the SR&EED Tax
Credit and the GeaDigita]l Pesition solely, to the extent of the Bomower's
indebtedness to PVL from time to time, together with all sccrued Interest thereon
snd all costs, charges and expenses Incurred by PVL in connection therewith;

212 Other than the PVL Security with respect to the SREED Tax Credlt znd the
QeoDigital Posltlon, the PYL Debt and PYL Security shall in all other respecis be
fully subordinate to the Bank Debl and the Subordinated Debl, snd the Bank
Security and the BDC Secuily will have priority 1o the full extent of the Bank
Debt and the Subordinated Debt, respectively, over the PVL Debt and the PVL
Security in all respects at all times,

4.2 PVL agrees with the Bank and BDC that, at any time, the Borrower may make and the Bank
and BDC may accept any payment or prepuyment In respect of the Bank Debt andlor the
Subordinated Debt respectively; or any pari thereof, whether or nol any Default bas
mumﬂ,mhmm-immmmwmmcummuunmm
respectively. Nothing contained in this Article 2 will prevent, lmli or restrict the Bank
and/or BOC In any manner from exercising all or sny of their rights or remedies ofierwise
permined under the terms of the Bank Security and the BDC Security In conmection with the
Bank Deb! and the BDC Debt, respectively,

2.3 For greater certainty, the subordination hereln provided shall spply to any guaranie granted
now or hereafier by eny Subsidiary Body Corporate, any Affiliate of the Borrower or any
Additional Guarantor to the Lenders.

pmnuwwmmmnm,mmﬂumtﬂppmw-cmnﬂm
Pantf a Subsidiary Body Corporate, any afTiliste or any Additiona] Cuarantors, nor the rights
pﬁg\m in any Security held In connection with such suretyship.

Article 2 shall remeln in force for as long as the Barrower has ot repald Iis Indebtedness In
full to any of the Lenders, and neither the Bank, BDC, or PFVL has cancelled the Bank
Credit, the BDC Offer and Loan Agreement, or the PVL Irstruments as the case miy be,
and shall apply in all events and circumstances regardless oft

z 2,5 Subject to the foregolng provisions, the subordinations and postponements provided in this

5.1 wmmmmnumummmwinmionwmm
Bormower Oroup Asselss

2.52 the respective dates of execution and reglsirstion atischment or perfection of the
PVL Security, BDC Securlty as well a3 the Bank Security;

o e LTS LTI




253 the dote or dates of any sdvances made or st will be made (o the Bormower by
the Lendsrs;

284 the dule of doles of any Event of Defauly

135 any other eause of prlorlty by sny principle of law or any siatule, including (e
Personal Properly Seeririty Ace (Onturic) between the PYL, the Bark and BB,

2.6 Subject 1o the pravislons of thls Agrecient, including without llminiion, Sectlon 2.1 and all

provisions relsting to the reswictions fmposed on PVL during & Standsiill Pedlod, the
subondinelion aud posiponement lierel:

261 shall nol prevest PVL from obtalulng the peineipal, intercst, fee snd scecssary
paymenis in accordance with the tettms sl conditions of the PYL Instrmmenls;

262 shall nat prevent PYL from excrclsing lis rlght under eny sunetyshdp held by it
With respect to the FVL Deby, ather than 8 suretyshlp by n Consening Pariy, a
Subsidiery Body Corporete of the Homower, Allillote of e Bomower or Ley
Adéidonal Giseantors;

243 shall ot peevent FVL from exerciaing it rlght uader eny Security on the SRLED
Tax Credlandfor the GeaDigital Paslilon;

264 shall pot prevent PYL from fillng a proof of clbem with eny troglee in bankrupicy
In the ease of sy ([} banliupley or asslgnment of propesty by any member of the
Barrower Group, (1) filing by any member of the Bormwer Oraup of & malice of
intention or & peeposs] pursiant 1o the Barkragitey end fnsolweiey Aet or filing of
an arngentent under the Companies * Cragitoes deranpement Ael {REC.c -
3e);

464  shall nol prevent PVL from involing an Evert of Defusl with respect 1o the PVL

Diebt nor 1o exercle Its rights and remedies In such circtenstances, whether by

judiclal means or otherwise. On the other hand, the renllzation of the FYL

Securdry remuins subject to the subordination provided by the present Aggeemenl

as fong ax it remalng In force.

withes to call ity | nkiinte enforcernent proceedings In view of eblalning repeyrment of
same or resllzing upon the PVL Security, including with out Emliasicn opin the filng ofa
peool of clalm as more parficularly described In seetion 2.5.4. sbave where & standytii
pefiod hes nol elready been trggered, PYL must ghve o wrltsen notlee fo the Bank informing
the Hank of lts Intention to do so (the “PVL Maiice of Imtentian™). IF the Bank does npt
motify FVL in wiiling that It aveils iseil ol the provisions regarding the laplémeilation of s
Standstill Period, and this wiihdn & perivd of ten (10} Business Days from e revelpt of the
PVL Malice of Inteniion, PVL mey then realize upen the PVL Security end take uny
measires deemed useft] or revessary to protest s rlghts with respect a0 the Bomower,

L¥ The Barvower and PVL hereby covenanl und agree to ensure thai the shares of Plejorvision

Huldings Ine. 8nd Plelorvision Ine. are nof a0ld unfess BDC receivas the Tull proceeds
{which it be no Jess than 52,500,000.00) Up 10 the ameuni owing to BDC. Mo olher
susels of the Bonower may be sold watll BOC Is repald including without Tiena bt bow, U
Cleolgitsl Posidon,
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253 ﬂudmwﬁnunrmrldwm:umﬂwtuﬂlhmummw
the Lenders;

154  the dole or dates of eny Event of Defeull;

155 any other cause of prority by any principle of law or any statule, including the
Pevzonal Properiy Seeurity Ast (Ontaric) between the PVL, the Bank and BDC.

| 2.6 Subject 10 the provisions of this Agreement, Including without limitation, Sectlon 2. | and all
! provisions relating to the restrictions imposed on PVL during s Standstill Perlod, the
' subordination and postponenient hiereln:

216.1  shall not prevent PYL from oblalning the prineipal, Inlerest, fee and sccessory
payments in sccordance with the terms and canditions of the PVL Instruments;

262  shall not prevent PYL from exerclsing [is right under any suretyship held by it
%muh?ﬂhh.mhrwnuwmbwicﬁmmm,l
Subsidiary Body Corporate of the Borrewer, Affiliate of the Borawer or any
Additional Querantors;

26.3  shall not prevent PVL from exercising iis right under sny Securlty on the SREED
Tax Credit and/er the QeoDigital Posltion;

264  shall not prevent PVL from filing & proof of claim with any trustee in bankrupicy
in the case of nny (f) bankrupley or assignment of property by any member of the
Hmwﬂnm,{ﬂ}mlu by any member of the Borrower Group of a motice of
intention or u proposal pursuent la lhelmhwqwhqukluﬂllm of
&n amngement under the Companies® Creditars Arrangement Act (REC, c. C-

265  shall not prevent Pﬂﬁﬂuhﬂﬂumﬂmdmmmﬂhmm
Dabt nor to exerclse It muummhmmmm whether by
Judiial means of otherwise. On the other hand, the realization of the PVL

Securily remains subjest to the subordination provided by the present Agreement

85 long as it remalns in foree.

& PVL Event of Defaull pursuant to ihe PYL Debit octurs and PYL

Or
2.7 Bubjest to Seciion 2.1
R,f/ wishes to call its [nitiate enforcement proceedings In view of oblalning repayment of
’é.'_\ same or reallzing upon the PYL Security, including without limitation upan the fillng of

the Bank of iz Intention io do 5o (the “PVL Notice of Intentlon™). If the Bank does not
MH!&MHwhﬁumﬂnlvduludfufhmMmmMmmmhmﬂhn ofa
Standstill Period, and this within a periad of ten (10) Business Days from the receipt of the
PYL Nolice of Intention, PVL may then reallze wpon the PVL Security and ke any
munmdumedmﬂuwmzympmmluﬂghu with respect to the Bommower,

1.5 The Borrower and PVL hersby covensnt and agree lo ensure that the shares of Pictorvsion
Holdings Inc. and Pictorvision Inc. are not sold unless BDC recelves the full proceeds
(which mm:tbemkuﬁmﬂ,!ﬂﬂhﬂb]uphdnmm:ﬂumﬁbﬂ.ﬂnuh
ussets of the Borrower may be sold until BDC s repaid Including without limiiadion, the
OeoDigital Position,
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2.9 For greater ceralnty, the priority of repayment and distribution of Cash Procceds of
Reallzation set oet In Bection 10 shall continbe in force. In addition, For greater cedalnly, &
FVL Notlee of Intention shull constitute an immediate Event of Default entitling the Bank,
in s discretion, to implement & One Hundred and Eighty Day (180) Sundstll Period,
provided hﬂmuMﬂinhmﬁdmmhmlﬂ.

2.1 The Subardinaled Debt and the BRC Seciarty herein are hereby fully subsrdinated to the
mmwwhmnarunnmmw the Bank Securlty will have priority to the full
extent of the Bank Debt over the BDC Secwity end the Subordinated Debi In all respects
and a1 al] times, save end exeept Ghal:

1.0.1 The BOC Security shall rank In prioeity to the Bank Security In ol respecis on the
Life Insurance Policy In the evert that the Berk Security affects the Life
Insurence Polley; and,

312 The Bank Securlty and the BDC Security shall rank on a pari passu basis without
w:ﬁmupﬂuilyhmmlhﬂlnrﬂpmirh Intellzctiunl Property as more

described hereln.

3.2 BOC agrees with the Bank that, st any time, the Borrower may make and the Benk may
uccept any peyment of prepayment In mpmﬂhﬁmnmmrwplnmm
or 1ot any Default has occurred, all In accordance with the Bank Loan Documents. Nothing
herein contained will prevent, llmit or resirict the Bank in any manner from exercising all or
any nfhﬂmmmeﬂunmmwnhw of the Bank Security In
connectlan with the Bank DebL,

3.3 For greater ceralnty, the suboedination herein provided shall apply to any gusrastes granted
now ot hereafier by any Subsidiary Body Corporate, any Affiliate of the Borower or mny
Additions! Gusranior to BDC of the Bank.

34 UMMWWHME‘MBDQHHMMM&HMHFHWM
not affect the rights of BDC In any suretyship granted n itx favour by sy person, related or
not fo the Borraier, other than the suretyship granted by a Subsidiary Bedy Corporale, any
effiliais o any Addidons] Ouaraniors, nof the rights of BOC In any Security held In
eonnection with such suretyship.

351 mﬁﬁuumﬂdﬁhhwhmmsmhmﬂmmm
mmwmm{mmﬁrﬂunmsmnnmunmwhﬂw
uﬂhpﬂ;ﬁmﬂuﬂhlmﬂﬂdmummm
described hereinl;
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3.52  the respective dates of execution and reglstration aitachaent or perfection of the
BDC Securily as well ux the Bank Security;

353 the dule or dates of any sdvances made or thal will be made to the Borrower by
the Bank or BDC;

3.54  the date or dates ofeny Event of Defaulty

355 ony olher eause of priority by any principle of law or any statole, including the
Persenal Property Seeurily Act between the Bank and BOC,

3.6 Subject to the provisions of this Agreement, including without limhation, all provisins
relating to the restrictions imposed on BDC during 8 Standstil] Perfod, the suberdination and

postponement herein:

361 shall not prevent BDC from obtalning the principal, interest, royalty, fee and
accEniory pryments in accordsnce with the terms and conditions of the Loan
Apreement;

362  shall not prevent BDC from exerclsing its right under any suretyship held by It
with respect 1o the Subordinated Debt, other than a suretyship by & Subsidiary
Body Corporste of the Borrower, Affllinte of the Borrower or any Additional
Guarantorn:

363  shall not prevent BDC from exerclaing Its right under any Securlty on the Lifke
Insurance Pobicy;

364 shall be eMfective only with respec 1o the Subordinated Debt, excluding amy
Purchase Money Obligation Incurred by sny member of the Bomower Group to
BDC, o5 well ns any Purchase Money Security granted 1o BEDC In connection

3.6.5 lhﬂlmtpmntancmn'ﬂnnmrurm\ﬂutwmmlnh&nﬂar
In the case ofeny (1) bankruptey or ssslgnment of property by any member of the
Borrower Group, (i) filing by any member of the Bocrower Group of a notice of
Inzestion or & proposal pursusnt to the Bankrupicy and Inxaleency At or filing of
an amangement under the Companles® Credifors Arrengement At (R.8.C, & C-
36y

166 shall not prevent BDC from lavoking an Event of Default with respect 1o the
Subondinaied Debt nor to exercise Its rights and remedies [n such elreumstaness,
whether by judielal means or otherwise, On the other hand, the resiizntion of the
BDC Security remalns subject 10 the subordination provided by the pressnt
Agreement as long as |t remalns [n fores.

3.7 Motwithstanding anything to the contrary contained bereln, If 8 BDC Event of Default
pusuant to the Subordinated Debt occurs and BDC wishes to call iy loan, inftsse
enforcement proceedings In view of obtalning repayment of same or realizing upon the
BDC Seewrity, Including witheut limitation upon the fillng of & proof of claim as more
particularly deseribed In secticn 3.6.5, above where & standstil] period has not elready been
triggered, BDC munt glve a written notice 1o the Bank informing the Bank of its intention to
60 50 (the "BDC Notice of Iniention™). If the Bank does not nofify BDC In writing that it
wvalls ftself of the provisions regarding the implementation of a Standstll] Period, and this
wiihin & period of ten (10) Business Duys from the rezelpt of the BDC Hotles of Intention,
BDC may Un reallze upon the BDC Security and take any messures deemed useful or




necessary (o protect Iis rights with respesi {o tie Borrower as if (ks agreement had not been

1.8 For grenler cerisinty, the priedity of repaymenl and distribuilon of Cash Proceeds of
Renlization sel oul in Section 10 shall eontinue In force. In addition, and for grealer
eerlalnty, 8 BDC Notles of Intention shall constitule &n immediate Event of Defaull entitling
the Bank, In Its discretion, to implement a One Hundred and Eighty Day (160} Stndatill
Period, provided it so sdvises BOC within the time period et out in peragraph 3.7.

1.5 Metwlihstanding the foregoing. the Bank consenls ta the repeyment of the Subordinated
Debt in Full Fom mmmwﬁrwwmwmm of ghares referred to
In Secilon 2.8 of this Agresment on or abowt June | 5, 2013.

4 CONSENT TO PAYMENTS

4.1 mmnhm:.?,mummmmﬂmunwupu 1s (o principal, interest,
fees, cosls and expenses by any member of the Bomower Grovp &nd fhe Bank Credit has
bcmnumlhﬁﬁblhuﬂwmhtlmhmuhmﬂ“hﬂud.lm

411 may receive principal, lnterest, royalty, fee, cosl and expense paymenis in
connecllon with the Subordinated Debt, in sccordance with the terms and
mumammwmmwmmnmdnﬂm
mmw,ﬁ-ﬂﬁwhﬂhﬁﬂuhﬂrﬂmurmmmm
does not become in defaut by reason of these payments;

412 nrnﬂmhwpnmnuldpdhdpdﬂnduﬂquﬂlmw}
mﬂmnmmwbmumaﬂ:wwmhmﬂpwuiu
mﬂhnﬂhh!uﬁd&ﬂﬂhhﬁﬁﬂlhpﬂqrﬁmmﬂurm

413 memmmmemmbwurwsmmm
mﬂpnﬁwrhtmno&tmuﬁmmﬁmarmmmmh;hmm
mm*nmu«iuﬂmﬁdnmhmpmmam—umu

4.2 Until such time the Bank Debt Is fully repaid as 10 principal, interest, fees, costs and
expenses by any member of the Borrower Group and the Bank Credit has been cancellod
and before the coming info force of a Standstill Period, PYLY

421 mﬂum.mmmﬂwmmhmmwu
the PVL Debt, In sceordance with the terms and conditions of the PVL
Instrumesits, to the extent whese, it the date of such payments, the Borrower i not
in default under the terms of the Bank Debe andior does not become in defiult by
reason of thess payments;

422 mnﬂmﬂﬂwwﬂdpdnﬂpduwmbmd‘mmmln
mﬂmﬂthﬂMﬂwhpﬂummﬂﬂﬁtm

423  may kesp mwmmwmumnmmw
mhm:mm:ﬂmmmﬂhmptHEﬂlnm{!
below;
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424  notwithstanding the foregoing, until the Subordinated Deb! has been repald In full,
FVL may only recelve payment of scheduled Interest payments on the PVL Deld,
in azcordance with the tems and condifons of the PVL Instruments.

43 Subject 1o section 3.9, Il is egreed thal any payment In conmection with the Subordinated
Debt made to BDC, andlor may payment In connectlon with the PVL Debt made 1o PVL,
while any member of the Borower Group Is in default pursuant 1o the provisions of the
Bank Debt and after & Bank Notloe of Defuult has been duly dellvered to BOC sndfor PVL
by the Bank or, s the case may be, within thirty (30) days prior to such notice if such
puymient Is Gve cause or materdally contributes to the cause of the Event of Defuull of eny
member of the Borrower Orotp with respect to the Bank Debt, will be deemed, 1o hive been
reselved by BDC andlor PVL scilng as mandatary and In trust for the Benk and shall be
remitied 1o the Bank by BDC andior PVL a5 soon a3 passible. It is Further agreed that in the
case of an Event of Default glving rise to & Standstll] Period of rinety (50) days, BDC
erdlor PYL shall remilt ol payments of princlpal (Including cash sweep payments, I any),
and bonus payments received but will, however, be eniltled to keep the Interest, royalty
nnd/or fee and sccessory payments snd stay such payments during the Standstill Perlod;

44 In the case of mn Event of Default glving rise to & Standstill Period of one hundred and
eighty (150) days, BDC andlor PVL shall remit 1o the Bank all payments recelved,
Including princlpal, intersst, royalty, bonus, accoun! mansgement fee and sscessory
peyments nd stay such paymenis during the Standsill Period,

45 [Mthe Event of Defaulf Invoked by the Bank under the Bank Debi s cured to the satisfection
of the Bank and the Bank has provided written notice to each of the Borower, BDC and
PVL, the Borrower shall resume [ts paymenis relating lo the Subordinated Det and PYL
Debt and BDC and PVL may then recelve printipal, [nterest, royalty, bonus, fae and
accessory payments in connection whth the Subardinsied Debt and PVL Deld respectively,
a3 well w3 all of the arears related to such amounts (excluding, for gredter ceralnty any
ncselemted amounts), Including the inferest on the unpaid britrest to the extent that such
repayment does not pul sny member of the Borrawer Qroup In defuull under the terms of
the Bank Dol both pre and post pryment. BDC and FVL may also demand payment of any
such amount required to malnisln the same yleld sa Inltially antlclpated In connection with
the Subondinated Debi and the FVL Debt, respectively, and a3 the case may be, provided
thel the extent of such payment does nat put any member of the Borrower Oroup in dafault
under the terms of the Bank Dbt both pre and post payment.

4.6 The Bank shall edvise BDC ard PVL us s00n a3 uny member of the Barrower Group has
remedicd the Event of Default Invoked by the Bank [n order thal the payments due o BDC
and PVL muy resume withaul further delay,

SECURITY HELD BY THE LENDERS

5.1 Ench of the Lendery declares and represents that no Security, other than those mentianed In
Schedule “D" snaexed herelo, guaraniess the obligations of each member of the Bomower
Growp pursant to the Bank Delr, the Subordinated Debt, and the PYL Debe.




5.2 Uniless otherwise seknowledged in writing by BDC and PVL, the rights and remedies of the
Bank pursuani lo any suretyship held with respect to the Bank Debt, the rights and remedies
of BDC pursizant to any suretyship held In relation 1 the Subordinated Debt, and (he righls
and remedies of PVL pursusnt 10 eny suretyship held In relation to the PVL Debt, other than a
suretyship held by a Subsidiary Body Corporaie of the Borrower, Affilisle of the Bomoweror
any eddidona] Guaranior are not subject fo the presenl Agreement.

5.3 Ench of BDC, PVL and the Benk shall permit the ather pasties hereto and thelr employess,
agents and contraclors, access ol ol reasonable times (o any property and mssels of any
wember of the Borower Group upon which It has & prier cherge or securlly interest In
accordance with the lerms hereof and fo permit such other party to remove such property and
assets from Lhe premises of any member of the Bomower Qroup sl el ressopabls limes
without interference, provided thet such other pasty shall promptly repalr any dumaga caused
to the premises by the removal of any such property or ssssls,

5.4 The Bomower kereby confirms to and agrees with BDC, PVL, and the Benk that 5o long es
any of the Indebtedness of the Bomower Group to BDC, PVL and the Bank remaing
putstanding, they shall stand possessed of thelr nssets so charged for BDC, FVL, and for the
Bank In sccordence with thelr respective Inlerests and priorlties 85 hesein set cul,

6.1 Subject to the terms of Subsection 6.2 hersal, the Bark will be entitled fo modify the terms
and condltlans of the Bank Credit wet forth in Schedule A annexed hereto withoul
autherizetion from BDC end PVL. However, these modificatlons shall not allow (he Bank 1a
demand the enfereement of & Standwill Perod In case of a Bank Event of Default resulling
solely from such modiflcations, If the modifieation had not been previowsty authorized by
Bwldmum&uﬂpﬂurhfhwhﬂu:nﬂpﬂudnf:bc[ﬁ]mnnﬂnﬂﬂhnﬁmﬂu
effective date of such modifications,

6.2 However, o all times, BDC's and PYL's suthorization will be required in he following
cases

621 if the Benk wishes amend the margining formula applleable lo Inventory and
acequnts receivable financing under the Bank Credil, as estsblished on the date

hereef;

622 at ol times, If the Bark wishes to lncresse the svallable eradit offered 1o the
Bamower under the Beak Credit provided however that ihe Bank may (T} Increase
the limit of avallable smoants provided for In the Bank Credit to o more than
one bundred and fifleen percent (115%) of the mmount already sutharized; or ()
decrease the Timit of availsble smounts provided for in the Bank Credit by no
more that fifleen percent (15%) of the gmount alresdy muthorized; wher the
suthorized limit under the Bank Credit currenily constsis as of the date hereof ofa
m:ﬂmmmu (S700,000.00) cperating line snd s $150,000

livys
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623 the financing of the scquisition of new equipment In excess of seventy-five
percent (75%) of the value of such equipment.

6.3 Where BDC and PYL wuihorization Is required pursuant o this section of this Agreement,
BDC and PVL shall not unrewsonably withkald thelr suthorization in the case of any request
miades by the Bank with respeci to the foregoing modificalions.

6.4 IF ua suthorization required hereunder Is mot granied In writing by BDC endfor PVL within e
period of MReen (1.5) Business Days from the writien request of the Bank, this suthorizstion fs
deemed o have been refused and any Bank Event of Defiult resulting solely from such
modifications, Il ihey had fiot been previously suthorized by BDC endfor FVL In writing shall
nol allow the Bank o demand the enforcenient of o Standstill Period prior Lo the expimntion of
n perlod of six (5) montha followlng the effective dnte of such modifiesion,
Notwithstanding, the forgoing and for gresler cartainty, If an suthorization required hereunder
is not granted in writing by BDC andfor PVL, but the Bunk determines to implement the
modifications in eonnection with which it was required 1o s2ek authorization, there shall bz no
prohibition on the Bank Instituting o Standstlll Perdod, upon & breach by the Botrower of the
terms and condifons of the Benk Credit as they exicted prior 1o Implementation of such
modificstions, provided however tha!l such modifieatioas did not contribute In any way o the
Borrawer's bresch of such lerms and condillony.

6.5 |n the case of an authorized increase of the credit limil, any new Security that may be required
Ey the Bank shall be subject to this Agreement.

7 STANDSTILL PERIOD

7.1 Subject to Seetion 1.9 (in which case no Standsilll Perod shall be inpesed oa BDC), Ifan
Evenl of Defaull occurs with respect to the Bank Debl, the Bank may subject 1o the tenms and
conditions of this Agreement, but withoul any obligation to do 50, natify BDC and FVL of the
ocewrence of such Event of Defsultl and Impose u Standsiill Period on BDC and PVL with
respect o the exercise of thelr righls megarding the Subordinated Debt and the PVL Debt

respesiively.

7.2 In onder for the Bank to exercise ity right to lmpose s Standstill Perod, the Bk shall
nonstheless glve a wiilten notice to BDC snd PVL sdvising of the Event of Defaull of the
Bormwer under the Bank Deti and [ndicaling the nsture of the defiuli(s). Upon receipl of the
Bank Notice of Default, BDC and PYL shall stay all procesdings engaged in view of raalizing
upon the BDC Security mnd the YL Security respectively or, a3 the case may be, not Initiate
my proceedings agalnst the Bomower in order 1o call lis lean or realizs upon e BDC
Becurity and the PVL Security respectively, unless the Bank has itself inilated such
proceedings with respect 1o the Bank Credit and/or the Bank Security, and u pericd of ten {10)
days has elapsed from the date the Bank Enltiiied such procesdings, such stay of non-initiation
of proceedings being limited to the Standatill Perlod and this, fior the perod(s) of time referred
Lo below In subsections 7.3 snd 7.4.

7.3 1f the Event of Defiult is limbted to only non performance on the part of the Bormower or any

other member of the Borrower Oroup, as applicable relating to the varfous financlal ratlas aad
such other covenants set forth In Section | of Schedul “E" snnexed hereto, subject o tha




modifications umhmmmmwmﬂmma.mmmw
will be limited to nlnety (50) days from the date of recelpl of the Bank Motice of Defaull,
during which period BDC and PVL:

73.0  may net receive prnclpal payments (including eash sweep payments) of bonus
payments in connection with the Subordinsled Debt and the FVL Det
respeciively, a5 the case may be;

732  will only be eliowed to recelve he Interesy, royally, fes and nccessory paymenls,
as the caie may be

7.3 mmmmhmwmkﬂmmhmmuum
mwummmmﬁwmnhmwmm
is commerclally ressonable

7.4 I he Event of Defialt invalves a defvolt set forth in Sectlon 2 of Schedule “E™ annexed
heseto, the Seandstl] Period will be limlied to one kundred and eighty (180) days from the
date of receipl of the Bank Motice of Defaull, period during which BDC and PYL:

T4l wmwdihmﬂlmwmmmuhﬁmﬂlhdmmhm
payments), Interest, royaliles, bonus, fees, atcessories or any other form of
payment for the sald period; and,

742 may not prohlblt the Bomower or the Bank from wsing the assety subject (o the
BDC Security and the PVL Securlly; provided such use ls not beyond that which
is commiercially reasonsble;

7.5 During any consecutive twelve (12) month period, the Bank may not request more than 2
(two) Stendstill Periods for & period of time exceeding One Hundred and Eighty (150) days if
the Event of Defuult i related 1o 8 fallure to meet the financlal ratios and other coveninls set
forth In Section | of Schedule “E" annexed hereio, or cng hundred end elghty (180} deys for
qmrMuermﬁ.mwﬂmnnnurthrmﬂnw
cumulstive number of deys of Standstlll Peylods during any conssculive twelve (12) month
period may not exceed one hundred and eighty (180) days and any one day of & Standstill
Period of ninety (50) days shiall reduce (he time allocated to » Standatill Period of one hundred
elghty (180) days by one day sccordingly as applicable.

7.5 The Standstill Perlod will terminate at the expiration of e term fixed for such Standstill
mlrﬁﬂmﬂwmmmbunfmmrwhnﬂumtﬁHhmm
nrmtmummmﬁmwurmswnm BDC snd PYL
nugm:mmﬁn;mnmrmsquﬂuhwmﬂwmmu
protect thelr rights with respect 10 the Borrower, ireluding the disposition of the Bomower
umMthnhEWEwmﬁﬂhMMwWh

7.7 In the event of (he delivery ol a BDC Notice of Intention andfor & PVL Nofice of Intentlon,
the Bank may, but without any obligetion 10 do s5, remedy the default of tha Borrower
MHHWMMNMMIIMMWNMH&M
mmmummuumam&mmmm
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B.1 If, after having taken sdvanisge for the firt lime of one or more Standstill Periods of &
mudmum cumulative duration of one hundred and eighty {180) duys, &5 the case may be, the
Bank hed 10 once agaln svall liself of Its rights to require a new Standstill Period (i.e. after the
expirtlon of & twelve {12) month pericd since the delivery of the Bank Noties of Default
having required the enforeement of & Nint Standstill Period) by reason of & new Event of
Default, the Bank scknowledges that BDC andlor PVL may require any member of the
Bomower Qroup, as spplicable to consent 10 the fellowling requirements, without such request
constitutes nn Bvent of Defeull pursusnt 1o the Bank Credit, and each member of the
Borrower Group underiakes to do all the necessary szts In order for these condiions b be
%Hﬂhhl@uf%ﬂﬂﬁﬂﬂﬂ:htnﬂhultﬂuﬂh%hm
effect:

BLl 1o kave their own sppointed represeatative to attend, as an observer(s), to ol
mestings of the boerd of directors of any memnber of the Bormower Group, during
which meetings such cbserver shall be entitled to participate |n discusdons but
nod be entitled 1o vote;

£.1.2 1o held & meeting of the board of direclors each month, &t & place and date
acceptable to BDC endfor PVL:

813 o have their own appolnicd representative 1o atiend, ms an observer, to all genenl
or special shareholders' meetings of any Borrower Group Member, during which
meelings such observer shall be entitled 1o participats in discusslons bul not be
entilled 1o vote;

8.14  loreceive & copy of any notice of meeting to direclors’ or sharsholdens® meetings,
a5 the case may be, af least five (5) deys In edvance, as well as all the relevant
documentation dellvered 1o the directors endfor shareholders of sny Borrowar
Oroup Member;

LS mmlmurmmnfﬂldhwuﬂlmmdm
within five () business deys of such mesting, even If the ohserver appolnted by
BDCandfor PVL was nod present at the mesting;

B.1.6 lo require the resignation of & direclor of any Borower Oroup Member and lis
replacement by & person appointed by BDC andfor VL, as the case muy be;

B.1.7 1o request an inerease In the Interest e payable on the advances made sccording
to the Loan Agreement, by way of an increase of the spread between BDC's
prime rate(s) and the achuml [nterest rale(s) peyable by amy Borrower Group
Meembar In sccondance with the Loan Agreement provided thar such Increase wiil
not result in a Bank Event of Defaull as & result of such Increase:

E.IE  to reques| & ressonable Incresse In the manthly secount mansgement fees payable
by any Borrewer Oroup Member;

B.1.9 lo obiain [rom the shareholders of any Bomower Group Member such further
Security with dellvery of all the voling shares held by such shareholders in e
aapil of the Borrower, with consent of Bank during an Injtlal Stendybl] Period
provided no consent of the Bank shall be required during subssquent Standmil
Perlods,

9 AMENDMENT OF BDC LOAN AGREEMENT, BDC LOAN DOCUMENTS, AND PVL
INSTRUMENTS

8.1 Subject to article B, withou! the prior written consent of the Bank, BDC and PVL agree thet
they will not ba entided to; (i) cause to be mare onerous o sdd any finsncial covenants of the
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Borower or bdd any additional Evenis of Defaull (25 defined In the Loan Agreement and or
ﬂnmwm-mn}mmmﬁymmwhmmmuummewww
certainty, the Offer Lettes)eopies of which are annzxed herelo as Seheduls "B"); (If) shorien
any scheduled repayment date or shorien the final matuity date of any of the Suboedinated
Dehnrmnnbt{mrﬁ-npmmuﬂumﬁmunmmd}w[m increase any
interest rate applicsble 1o the Subordinated Mwmmmmummmmdw.
that this shall not resiriet any ineresse in any Inferest rate applicable only fedlowing the
pecwrence of any Evenl of Defuult under the Loan Documents or PVL Instruments =s In
|thwlhldnrrﬂﬂmdpfwﬂmﬁﬂhu;ﬂu|nymnwmdlmw¢ﬂﬁu
follewing oceurrence of &n Event of Defuult shall sccrue until gl of the Bank Diebt shall have
been indefessibly satlsfied In full and all eommitments to make advances under the Bank
Credit have been lerminated).

10 APPLICATION OF CASH FROCEEDS OF REALIZATION

10.] Al Cash Procesds of Realization, other than Cash Proceeds of ealization direclly or
indiectly derived from of relating to the Life Insurance Policy, the Intellschual Property, the
SRAED Tax Credit and the QeaDigital Position, or subjest to payment of any claims of liess
ranking In priority to the Bank Debt and Bank Seeurity, wiil be applied and distribuied, and
the Security will be deemed lo have the relative priorities which would result in such Cash
Proceeds of Realtzation belng npplied and distributed, &3 Follows:

10.1.1 firstly, to the payment of all ressonable costs and expenses Incurred by the Bank
muumtmmwwuru:mmwumnmmmmumd
in payment of all of the remunsration of any Recelver and all reasonable costs
Imndhymhkmhﬁlnhumﬂﬂﬂiuwpnmpmdwhum
the Bank Credif;

10.1.2 secondly, to the psyment or prepayment In full of the Bank Debt (Including
HMMMWurmmummmmhmm Egainst
ﬂankDﬁtnhummm“ummmﬂmumaukmm
fir;

10.1.3 thirdly, to the payment of all rexsonshle eotts and expenses Incurred by BDC In
hm#ﬂﬂ#wﬂﬁumwﬂmhmﬂrhmnﬂh;h
Loan Agreement or the BDC Securlty nilnwmnmrﬂufﬁ:mmﬂun
afany Recelver and all mﬁllmimiwmmﬂmhmm
of all or uny powers granted 10 It wnder BDC Securlty provided thet BDC Is
permitted to exercise such powers and o appaint a Receiver pursust o this

Agresmenly

10.14 fourthly, to the paymenl or prepsyment in full of the Subordinated Debt
nndwummmmmurmm as cash collsten! 1o be
epplied agalnst Subordlnzted Debt which have not then matured);

10.1.5 nm,wmw#ﬂwﬂhumﬂwimtdhymm
the exerclse of all or any of the powers granted o it under the PVL Instruments or
the PVL Security and hwﬂdldhemumﬂmurm Receiver and
dwmmmmmlnﬁnmrﬁuwmwww

to It under PVLL Security mﬂddﬁumhpﬁnmldmmdwmh
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10.1.6

10.1.7

sixthly, to the payment or prepayment in full of the PVL Debt (including holding
such Cash Proceeds of Realization as cash collaters] to be applied agalnst PVL
Debit which have not then matured); and

the balance, I any, wn accordance with applicable lave.

102 Al Cash Procesds of Realization directly or Indirectly derived from or relatlng lo any and
all Life Insurance Policy will be epplied and distribiged, and the Security will be deemed to
bave the relative prioritles which would resull in such Cash Proceeds of Reslizalion being
applied and distribited, as follows:

Iz

loz2

1023

firstly, 1o the payment of all reasonable costs and expenses Incurred by BOC in
the exerclse of all or any of the powers granied to it under the BDC Security and
in payment of sl of the remuneration of any Reeelver and all ressorable costs
Incurved by such Recelver in the exareise of oll or any powers granted to it under

tha BDC Security;

secondly, lo the payment or prepayment In Full of the Subordinmed Debt
(including holding such Cash Proceeds of Realizstion as cash collatersl 1o be
Subordinated Debt which have not then mstured); and

epplisd agains!
the balance, I any, in sccondance with spplicable low,

103 The Cash Procesds of Realization of the Intellectual Property will be applisd mnd
distributed, and the Securlly will be deemed o have the relative priorities which would resull
in such Cash Proceeds of Realizstion being applied and dinefbuted, ns Follows, afer (he
epplication end distdbudon of the Cash Proceeds of Reslization of all of the other Bomower
Oroup Assels:

10.3.1 firstly, to the payment of sll reasonsble costs and expenses Incurred by the Bank

1033

and BDC In the exercise of all or eny of the powers granted to It under the Bank
Credit on the one hand and the BDC Offer or Loan Agreement on the other hund
and In paymeni of sl of the remuneration of any Receiver and all rexsonable costs
Ineurred by such Recelver In the exsrclse of oll or any powers granted to it undsr
the Bask Credit on the one hand and the BDC Ofer and the Loan Agreemeni on
the other hand, on & par] passu basls such that I the Cash Proceeds of Realtzmtion
are pol sulficlent to retire all such reasonable costs end expenses then each of the
Bank and BDC shall be relmbursed & pro rata amount of the costs end expenses
incurred by such party as are In nito the total costs and expensss Incurred
by both parties In the sggregeie;

secondly, to the payment or prepayment in full of the Bank Delt end the
Subordinated Dbt (Including holding such Cash Proceeds of Reallration as eath
eollatsral to be applled sgalnst the Bank Debt and ihe Subordinaled Debt whith
have not then matured) In such manner as the Bank and BDC may see fit on s pari
passu basis such that o the Cash Procseds of Reslimton are not sufficlent to
refire all of the Bank Debt and the Subordinated Debs, then esch of the Bank and
BDC shall ba relmbussed & pro rata amount of the Bank Delt and the
Subonfinated Delt, as 1 casemay be, as such debl 1t In proporilon to the totsl of
the Bank Deb and the Subordinaled Dbt bn the 2ggregate; and,

the balance, if mny in sccordances with applicable law,
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0.4 Subject ta Section 2.1, all Cash Proceeds of Reaflztion directly of Indiresily derived from
or relating fo the SREED Tax Credit andior the GeoDighal Pasitlon will be applied and
distributed, &nd the Security will be decmed to have the relutive priorities which would resull
I such Cash Proceeds of Realizalion belng npplied and distribuled, aa follows:

10.4.1 Mg.wmprmﬂdlmmamwumuinmmhﬂhhm
pxercize of all or any of the powers granted 1o 1t under the PVL Seciity end In
payment of all of the remuneration of any Recelver and afl reasonsble cosis
Imnﬂwmm&mhhmﬁnﬂﬂwww:mhdwhm
the PYL Security;

1042 sesondly, 1o the payment or prepayment in full of the PVL Deld (including
hﬂdluuﬂmm&hhﬂhﬁuﬂnﬂlmlmhmpﬁdqﬂnﬂ
the PVL Debt which have not then maturedy;

10,43 thirdly, te the payment of a1l reasonsble costs and expenses Incurred by the Bank
in the exercize of sll or any of the pawers granted to 1t under the Bask Credil or
the Bark Securlly, and In payment of all of the remuneration of eny Receiver and
all reasonable costs Incurred by such Receiver in the exercise of all or any powers
granted ta 1t under the Bark Credlt or Bank Secirlty;

1044 fourihly, hmmmmmmmlnﬂHdhmmh{imhdiq
MIMMMM#WMBMMIMI 1o be applied agalnst
Bank Debt which have notthen mutured);

1045 fifthly, to the payment of all reasonable costs and expenses [ncummed by BDC In

of any Recelver and i reasonable cosis incurred by such Recelver In the exercise
of all or any powers granied to it under BDC Sceurity provided that BDC I
permitied |0 exerclse such powers and 10 appalnt 3 Recelver pursant bo this
Agresmenk;

104.6 miuhwwwwmmuwmmmm
halding such Cazh Proceeds of Realizalion az cash eollateral to be applled againsi
Subordinsted Debt which have not then matured); and

1047 the balance, if any, in sccordance with applicable law.

{05 Esch of BDC, the Bank and PVL scknowledges that the foregoing method of epplication
urmmnrm:auhrﬁmnmm il mny, of prier secured
creditors of the Emw.&kmmhmlmdmm:hﬂm
conslitute a subordinaticn by either BDC, the Bark or PVL In favour of any ollier creditor of
the Bomower, For the purposes of this Agreement, the Bank Debi will not be consldered to
have bean lelnI'unmllnhmhumwwlnnshurmmlmlﬂll
mmumcmmmwlmumﬂmmmmnuhﬂnmm
nbchnuulvﬂmnwllnmﬁnrmmwnfﬂlwmwﬂumm
mm:mmumuudmmmpddmmﬂmmmmwh
cash of the Mull smount of all PVL Debt.

11 DURATION
111 mmwnmmnmﬁmnmmmmm




11 m-qumuhﬁmurmmmmmummmmmuh
pariles herelo;

112 the date on which any and all emounss due with respect 1o the Bank Debt will
kuve been complelely repald and the Bank Credit has been cancelled o the entire
salisfeciion of the Bank and no firther cbligation remalns with the Bank 1o
advance funds to the Barrawer;

.13 the dute on which any and all miints dus with respeci to the Subordinated Deby
will have been complelely repald and the Bank Credit bas been cancelled to the
enitlre satisfaztion of BDC and PVL.

.14 m:dmmmanumddtnmmmmWh&:WLnﬁmhh
mmmwwmmhrmlmmm
been cancelled to the entire satfsfaction of the Bank.

12 DOCUMENTATION

121

Each Lendar ghall, upan request of (he other Lender and no later than fifteen (15)
Mﬁmhmwuulpmyiwd.m-mtwwmhmmw:h"dnw
Bet dremed uselul or necessary In order to give effezl to the Agreement hereof,
Including, ny the case muy be, assigning the priority of rank with respect to their
respective Securily.

13 DEFAULT AND NOTICE OF DEFAULT

13.1

13.2

14 NOTICE
14.1

The Lenders sgree o et rassonably when exemcising their respeciive rights and
remedles under the serms of the Subordinated Debt, the Bank Debi mnd the PVL
Debd.

The Lenders alto agres 1o provide each other with copies of any letler or any nolice
transmitted Inm{ﬂmbrmnrm-umrhmnmrﬁuhgwwﬂmmr
mﬁmumnmﬂmmmmmm,umeMu
the esse may be bul any failure to provide such nofice shall not [avalidate the
agreements mads herein,

All notices or requests provided for In this Agreemant shall be imnsmitted In writing
to the pasty to which It Is snt or given. Any notice or request {3 valldly transmitied
byhhﬁwhiﬂnﬁpﬁnnmwﬂy{hwummuﬁmmﬂyﬂlh
sccepled); or by reglstered and prepaid mall; or by facsimlle, telex, cable or talegram;
or served lo the sddresos herelnefler mentioned:

For BDC:
BOC Capiul Inc., s whelly-owned subsidiary of Business Development Bark of

380 Wellingion Street, London, Ontarie,
NEA 5BS

To the attentlon of Jeff Hill
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Far the Bank:

Feyal Bank of Canada

30 Duke Street West, B* Floor
Kltchener, Onlario

NIH IWS

To the stientlon of Accounl Mansger— PV Labs

For PVL:

1685 Maln Street West, Sulte 25,
Hamillon, Onierio,
LES 1G5

To the Atientlon: Riober Manherz, President

For the Bomower:

400A - 175 Longwood Rosd
Ham!llon, Onisrio
LEP DAL

Any notice glven or mymmmlnpmudmmmhmnmm
recelved wunlndaﬂvuy.ﬁpmnlﬂrddhmﬂ.wuﬂuﬁmnﬂumh. If secved, or on the
third (3*) Business Day following its mailing, if sent by mal, or on the Business Day fellowing
its prareminal, lrwmlmdhrnthm.uubmﬁqm;umumm be, However, I ihe

M&Mmmdﬂhﬁrwﬂudwnﬁm of address In the manner
herelnabave mentioned for the purpases of this Agreement.

15 MISCELLANEOUS

15.1

152

Tﬁnﬂﬂmw.ﬂmwmmwu-ﬁﬂhm
mmhﬁmdm.MrMHmnwmm
subsiltuted by this Agresment,

Monles deposiied by the Borrower with Benk. With the exception of monles deposited in any
mmmamwmmmmmMurmﬂmm
and PVL shall not be entitled, notwlhstnding enything to the contrary In this Agreemenl, to
make a clilm agains any morles which are deposited in or disbursed from iy sccount of the
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153

15.5

|57

15k

Berrower maintsined wilh the Bask, excepl for momles depesited thereln aflar the time the
Bank has recelved written notlee from BDC of & defoull under the BDC Offer or the Lean

Agresnieni.

Suecestors and Assigns, The tzrms and eenditions hereln shall spply end enure 1o the benefit
of the successors and nssigns of BOC, he Bnak und P'VL. Any sssignes of the rights of the
Dank according 1o the Bank Debe shall beneff from (e rights of the Bank in sccordapce with
the terma hereof, any msslgnee of the tlghts of BDC pursuent 10 the Subordinated Debt shall
ussuine in wrilng the obligerions of BDC deseribed hereln and BOC sgrees to oblsin such
assunipllon from such asslgnes, ond any ssstgnee of the rights of PVL pursusnl 16 the PVL
Debt shall ecsume In wriling the obligatlons of PVL deseribed herein and PVL sgrees (o
obialn such sssumption from such assignee.

Centinzing Agroement, ‘This Agreemen! shall canstinse n continuing sgreement, even (hough
af fimes the Bonower {ns spplienble) may pot be Indebted 1o o Lender under the epplicable
Loan Documents und each Lender may continue, without notice 1o the ether Lender, la lend
money, exiend credil and make other financlal sccommodations To o fer the eccound of the
Domrower (os applicsble) on e falth hereof.

Waivers and Amendments. Moo of (he terms or provisions of this Agreement may be
walved, amended, suppleniented or otherwise modlfied excepl by @ writen Instrument
execuled by the Lenders, No Lender wii by nmy netor delay, be deemed i have walyed any
right or reimedy hereunder er lo have scquiesced In any dofault or In nny breech of any of the
terms and condilions hereol, Mo fallure (o exereise, nor dyy dellny In exerclsing, on the pert of
uny Lender, any right, power or privilege hercunder shall aperule a5 o wilver (hereol, Mo
single or partlel exerclse of nny right, power o privilege heseunder will peeclude nny other or
lurthir exercise thereof or the exerclss of ey other right, power or privilege. A walver by
ary Lender of any right or remedy hereunder on mny one occasion will not be eonstrued o3 a
bar to anty right or remedy which such Lendsr would otherwise have on any Mulore secaslon,

Governing Laws. ‘The provislons hereof shall be Eovemned by and construed In ecsrdencs
with the laws of the Province of Ontario and the Tederal laws of Canadn applicsble thereln.

The Agreement hereol may be executed i any number of esunterparts, each of which when
so executed and defivered shull be deemed o be an original, and all of which taken togelher
shail constitute ne end the ssme agreement. Executlan of this Apgreement mey be made by
exch party by signlng e copy of the Agreement and sending such signasture by facsimlle o
olherwize.

The Consenting Pastles conflrm thelr consent 1o, srd approval of, the terms and condillons of
this Agresment.

N WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereio have executed this Agrezment |n the following marmer:
o
BOC this 22 " day oftomm; 2013,

e/
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Bomower mainiained with the Bank, except for monles deposited therein afier the time the
Bask has received writlen notice from BDC of 8 default under the BDC Offer or the Loan

Agreenient,

15.3 Successors and Assigns. The terms and conditions heraln shal apply and enure 1o the benefil
of the successors and assigns of BDC, (he Bank and PVL. Any assignee of the rights of the
Bank according to the Bank Debt shall benefit from the rights of the Bank In sceordance with
the terms hereof, any assignee of the rights of BDC purzsuant to the Subordinaled Debi shall
assume in writing the obligations of BDC described herein and BODC agrees 1o obialn such
assumption from such assignee, and any sssignee of the rights of PVL pursuant o the PVL
Debt shall assume in writing the obligations of PVL described herein &nd PYL agrees o
obisin such assumptien fram such assignee,

15.4 Continulng Agreement, This Agreement shall constilvie n continulng agresment, even though
of times the Bomrower (us applicable) may not be Indebted to a Lender under the applicable
Loan Dacuments and each Lender may continue, without notice to the olher Lender, 1o lend
maney, extend credit and make other finenclal sccommodations to o for the account of the
Borrower (85 applicabie) on the faith hereof:

155 Waivers and Amendments. Hmtwrﬂulumwpmhlwuflusmmmh
walved, amended, supplemenied or otherwise modified except by 4 wrilen Instrument
executed by the Lenders, Mo Lender will by any aot or delay, be decined Io have walved any
right or remedy hareunder or o have scquiesced In any default or in wny breach of any of the
terms and conditions hercof, Numh-:tumr:he.mmydshrlnmhlu on the part of
any Lender, sny right, power or privilege hereunder shall operate as & walver theresf No
single or partlal exercise of eny right, power or privilege hereunder will preclude any other or
further exerclse thereof or the raercise of any other right, power or privilege. A walver by
wumuruyrw«umdthmdwwwmmmlm will not be construed a1 a
bar to any right or remedy which such Lender would otherwise have an any fulure oecasion,

15.6 Goveming Laws. mpmmwmumhymmwmm
with the laws of the Province of Ontario and the federal laws of Canads spplicable thereln.

157 The Agreement hereof may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which when
50 executed and delivered shall be deemed to be an original, and all of which taken together

shall constitule one and the same agreement. Executlon of this Agreement may be misde by
each party by signing a copy of the Agreement and sending such signature by Facsimile or
otherwise,

158 The Consenting Pasties confirm their consent to, snd approval of, the terms 2nd conditions of
this Agreemend.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties herelo have sxecuted this Agreement In the following manner;
of
BDC this 22" day ur.gmﬂizuu.

ﬁ“‘:@f‘ﬁ




. ot birvien
The Bank this _ 2 Z-day ofJanuery;2013.

BDC CAPITAL INC, 8 wholly-owned gubsidiary of
BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT BANK OF CANADA

N

Meme: -~ TNy GofAvL
Title: AWAGER, SUBOEDNATE FianLE

Fﬂ.

N cs%mmmmfwg
1'We have sulhority to bl ank.

ROYAL BANK OF CANADA

Name: - EJ Asont & AD
Title” (ppsemante Tare ﬁfdﬁﬁur/ﬂﬂwﬁm

Per:
Hame:

Title:
/' We have authorty to bind the Bank.
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PVL this____day of January, 2013,

PVL CAPITAL CORPORA
B

Robert Manherz, President Fs
I have the authority to bind the Corparation.

Per;
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The Consenting Parties this ____ day of Jenuary, 2013.
PY LABS(USA) INC.

Neme: Tom HALLMAN EJP

1 have the suthorlty 1o bind the Corporation.
PICT 10N C.
Per;
Name: G, fresinesr

I have the suthorlty to bind the Corporalion.

PICTORVISION INC.

Tame: (oM WAKNAA, PRSSIBEAT
1 harve the authority to bind the Comporation.

TRIVANHIS LT,
Name: (WAL W, fresovent

1 have the suthorlsy to bind the Corporaiion.




SRS—

—_—
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The Consenting Partles ihls ____ day of Mnuary, 2012,

PY LABS { .
M:M
e Tom HALLMAN, EJP

I bave the sulhorliy i bind the Corporation.

FICTORVISION HOLINNGS INC.
Fen

Hume:
1 bave the autborlly io bind the Comporstion.

FICTORVISION INC.
gﬂm Tom PA\&MW, Phasi T
I have the autharity to bind the Corparailon.

TRIVARIS LTD.
Peg:

HName:
Thave the axthority to blrd the Corporation.

" MARK CHAMBERLAIN
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Schedule “A"
Latter Agreement of Benk duted March B, 012

0 g e £ sl AL S R S

102




Schedule “B"
Offer Lener/Loan Agreement of BDC

Dated ____, nd Aprll 25% 2011, respectively
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Schedule “C”
Cemmitment of PVL/Loan Agreemant of PV L/Promissory Mole
Disled Jeruary 18, 2013, Januery 30, 3013 and Jenuary 30, 2013, respectively

104
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SCHEDULE "D~

LIST OF LIFE INSURANCE POLICIES IN FAYOUR OF BDC

Sun Life Assursnce Company of Canada Life Insusance Pelicy LI-J304 215-0 on the Iife of Mark
Jeffrey Chamberlaln in the smoant of $2,500,000,

LIST OF THE BANK SECURITY

The Bank declares Usat a3 of the date of these presents, the Bank Security held is the following:
L Oeseral Security Agreement from the Bamower,

LISTOF THE BDC SECURITY
BDC declares (hat ut the date of these presents, the Security held is the fallowing:

1 Oleneral Security A greement from the Borrower.
2 chhmlﬂmﬂmdmhuﬂnfwmtﬂmuﬂﬁnim
k1 mm«melﬁmmmhmwummmummmﬂ

4, Mﬂn@mﬂlﬂ“lﬂﬂﬁhhﬂﬁﬁ}.hﬂ.fwﬂ:ﬁlmnfthmm
supporied by s OSA.
5. Full Corporate Qusraniee of Fistorvision Holdlings Ine. for the full amount of the investment
supporied by s GSA,
&, ;wmam-rmmmmmmwﬂﬂuhwqmuw
aO8A,
7. Pestpanement of $658,400 due to Trivaris L,

LIST OF THE PVL SECURITY

PVL decleres that as of the dule of these presents, the Bank Sesurity held Is the following:

I.  Oeneral Security Agreement from the Borrower.,

1. Specific Securlty Agreement from hmwlhhdhﬁm&dm
Bemower,

3, Anﬁpmmnfﬁuﬂmw'aimr:ﬂiuuumwﬂipnyuhlpm it by the Canads

Revenue Agency under the “Sclentific Research and Experimente] Development Tax
Incentive Program™ for the Borrower"s 2012 taxation yesr.

4. A Share Pledge Ppledging the Pledged Shares (a3 defined thereln) of
GeoDigikal Inemadinal b’ )
5. Full Corporule Ouaranite of PV Labs (LISA), Inc. for the full smowst of the nvestment,
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6. Full Corporale Ouarnnies of Pletorvision Holdings Inc. Tor the full emount of the
{nvestment,

7.  Full Corporsiz Guarsntes of Pictorvision Ine, fior the fill amount of the invesiment.



I

The Besk may avall lself of & nlnery (90) day Standsill] Peciod [n the exse of the follawing
Ewvents of Default:

(a)  Ifthe Bomower's ratho of Current Assets to Current Linbilliies 1s ess than |.25:1 measured

quartery;
(b  ihe Bn:-m-w'l radio of Total Liskilllies to Tangfble Net Worth Is grealer than 2.50:1,
messured quartarly;

The Bank may avall Hselfl of u one hundred and eighty (130) day Standstlil Perlod in the case of
Ihe fellowing Events of Defaull:

()  Ihe inlerest is not pald when doe pursuant to the Bank Loan Documents;

(t)  the principal repayments are nol made:

] Hwhmrmﬁh%luﬂmﬂhrmhﬁhnmtlm
(d) BDC dellvers s BDC Nolice of Inlention each of the Barrower snd (he Bank

Faor the purpases hereo, the following expressions mean:

“Correot Assebs™ means, ot any thme, those exvets ondinarily realizablz within coe year from the
date of determ|nation or within the normal operniing ayels, where such cycle is longer than & yesr:

“Currenl Lisbllkles" means, al any time, amounts payabla within one year from the date of
detemination or within the normal operating eycle, whese such cycle Is longer than & yesr (the
operatlng cycle must comespond with that used for current sasets);

“Equity” means the total of share capltal, (excluding preferred shares redeemable within one
year) contributed surphes mnd retained eamings plus Postponed Debi;

“Postponed Debi™ means indabledness that ks fully posipooed and subordinaled, both as to
principsl and Interest, om terms sstlafactory to the Bank, fo the obligations owing o the Bank
hereunder; "
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WTangible Net Worth™ meens the \oia} of Equlty Tess fal

lﬁhdll’ﬂrd:hfﬁhndﬂﬂ

improvements, deferred tax eredits and unsecired advances (o related pasties. For fhe purpose

hereof, Intangibles are nsseis Jacking physica! subsianee;
wTptal Lisbiiities” mesns all Habilities, gaelushve of deferred tax g

bilities and Postponed Diebl;
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IN THE MATTER OF THE PROPOSAL OF PV LABS INC.

Estate No. 32-2211776

ONTARIO
SUPERIOR COURT OF JUSTICE
(COMMERCIAL LIST)

Proceedings commenced at TORONTO

MOTION RECORD

CHAITONS LLP

Barristers and Solicitors
5000 Yonge Street, 10" Floor
Toronto, ON M2N 7E9

George Benchetrit

LSUC Registration No. 34163H
Tel:  (416) 218-1141

Fax: (416) 218-1841

Lawyers for PV Labs Inc.

Doc#3827173v1
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